
 1/16/2018: STAFF REPORT 6.B. POWERPOINT ATTACHMENT

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Thursday, January 18, 2018 - 2:00 PM

1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business
hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org.
The District Office hours are Monday - Thursday, and every other Friday from 9:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m.
Please call 805-927-6223 if you need any assistance. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents
shall be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any
questions regarding the agenda.

1. OPENING

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Establishment of Quorum

D. Election of Officers

1. Public Comment
2. Election of Officers

C. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item)

A. Sheriff's Department Report

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion additional
comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.)

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the Board but
not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act on items not on the
agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the entry) should be submitted to the
District Clerk.

4. Manager Reports

A. General Manager's Report
B. Finance Manager's Report

1

http://


C. Fire Chief's Report
D. Ad Hoc Committees Reporting:

Rate and Fee Study for Water and Sewer Rates and Capacity Fees
Task: to work with the General Manager and the consultant, Bartle Wells Associates, on
matters related to the rate and fee study for water and sewer rates and capacity fees.
 
Liaison Reports:
NCAC
PROS
FFRP
Forest Committee

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to discuss a consent
item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be made. Such items are pulled for
separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a whole is acted upon.

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE DECEMBER 2017 EXPENDITURE REPORT
B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE DECEMBER 4, 2017, DECEMBER 11, 2017, AND

DECEMBER 19, 2017 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND DECEMBER 14, 2017
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

C. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 02-2018 APPROVING WORKERS'
COMPENSATION COVERAGE FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SPECIFIED
DISTRICT VOLUNTEERS

D. CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT KERMIT JOHANSSEN, CURRENTLY AN
ALTERNATE PROS COMMISSIONER TO THE PROS COMMISSION AND TO
APPOINT STANLEY COOPER, CURRENTLY A PROS COMMISSION, AS AN
ALTERNATE TO THE PROS COMMISSION, WITH EACH COMPLETING THE
REMAINDER OF THE OTHER'S UNEXPIRED TERM

E. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 04-2018 DECLARING WORK
COMPLETED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR
THE SURFACE WATER IMPOUNDMENT BASIN DRAINAGE SWALE PROJECT

6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED 2018 PROS GOALS &
OBJECTIVES

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING FIRE DEPARTMENT STAFFING
LEVELS AND POSSIBLE BALLOT MEASURE FOR SPECIAL TAX ELECTION TO
FUND THREE (3) FULL TIME FIREFIGHTERS

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF IMPLEMENTATION OF WATER AND
SEWER RATES PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION 01-2016

D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ANNUAL REVIEW OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS BYLAWS

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 01-2018
ESTABLISHING THE 2018 CCSD REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE

F. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ESTABLISHING COMMITTEE AND
DIRECTOR LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a
formal agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken
except to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by majority vote.

A. Discussion and Consideration of List of CCSD Owned Properties

2



B. Discussion and Consideration of Adoption of Policy Regarding Use of Electronic
Communication Devices During Meetings

C. Discussion and Consideration of CCSD Water Supply Situation

8. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION Closed Session shall be held at the District offices
located at 1316 Tamsen Street, Cambria, CA.(Estimated time 60 Minutes)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representative: General Manager, Jerry D. Gruber Employee
Group: International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF)

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representative: General Manager Jerry Gruber; Employee
Organization: Services Employee International Union

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representative:  General Manager Jerry Gruber; Unrepresented
group, Management and Confidential Exempt Employees

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Initiation of
litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4):One potential case.

3



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 1.D. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018  Subject: ELECTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR  
        OFFICERS 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. The Vice President opens nominations for the office of President 
2. Accept nominations from the Board members 
3. Close nominations 
4. Vote of those nominated 
5. The President opens nominations for the office of Vice President 
6. Accept nominations from the Board members 
7. Close nominations 
8. Vote of those nominated 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The first order of business of the new Board is the election of Board Officers, President and 
Vice President. 
 
Section 1.4 of the Board of Director Bylaws provides the procedure for the election of the 
President and Vice President annually.  

 
1.4 The President and Vice President of the Board shall be elected annually at 

the first regular meeting in December and the term of office shall commence 
immediately upon election and continue until replaced. 

 
 
The procedures are outlined above for your consideration under recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS: ___ RICE ___ FARMER ___ BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON_____PIERSON 

4



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.A. 

 
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018      Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT 
  
 

GENERAL MANAGER: 
 
I will be providing the CCSD Board of Directors an update on the following items:  
 
I would like to take a moment to acknowledge and welcome the newest CCSD Board Member, Director 
Pierson. Staff is here to make your transition onto the Board of Directors as smooth as possible. Please 
let us know if there is anything we can do for you.  
 
I have been working very closely with our new Finance Manager, Rudy Hernandez, since our last Board 
Meeting and I am extremely pleased with Rudy and the improvements he has made since his arrival. Mr. 
Hernandez will be providing the CCSD Board of Directors and the Community of Cambria a monthly 
update on the overall financial status of the District. This will include, but not be limited to, revenues 
versus expenditures, and the specific operational improvements and internal controls that have been 
implemented into our daily operations since Mr. Hernandez’s arrival. I wanted to let the Board of Directors 
know that at last month’s meeting, Ms. Bettenhausen raised some questions regarding the SWF. On 
Thursday January 4, 2018, a meeting was conducted at the General Manager’s office to discuss, address, 
and resolve some of the questions that were asked at the December Board Meeting. In attendance from 
the CCSD were Jerry Gruber, Rudy Hernandez, Patrick O’Reilly via telephone, Bob Gresens, and 
Director Wharton. Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Dewayne Lee, and Karen Dean were also present. The 
meeting lasted approximately one and one half hour and the exchange was extremely respectful and 
cordial. Several other questions were asked relating to overall revenues versus expenditures and staff is 
addressing those. 
 
Staff continues to monitor the community’s water supply closely. As I am writing this staff report, it is 
raining outside and I am extremely thankful for the overdue precipitation. At the December Board Meeting 
the Board asked that I keep a very close eye on the current aquifer conditions, and to encourage 
conservation measures throughout the community. To date, we are well under our normal precipitation 
levels for this time of the year. Both the San Simeon and Santa Rosa aquifers are at adequate levels for 
our winter months; however if the weather patterns continue with minimal precipitation, we will need to 
discuss the possibility of more restrictive conservation efforts. The WBE monitoring well is at a good level, 
in addition to the Wastewater Gradient levels. Production continues to be at a manageable level and we 
do not anticipate at this time needing to operate the Sustainable Water Facility over the next few months. 
 
On December 7, 2017, the RWQCB issued the approval of the Cambria Community Service’s Blending 
of the Surface Impoundment Wastewater and Treated Municipal Effluent per Resolution No. R3-2014-
0041, General Waiver for Specific Types of Discharge. District Engineer Bob Gresens will be providing 
the Board with an update on the Closure Plan as part of his Engineer’s Report. I have also directed Bob 
to keep a running detailed breakdown for costs associated with the Closure Plan, as well as an update 
relating to the status of the District’s RCDP for the SWF and the collaborative effort between CCSD staff 
and County Planning Staff.  
 
I have submitted a renewal application to the South County Sanitation District for the disposal of brine 
from the SWF to their facility.   
 
The East Ranch Phase One Park Project is completed and the Old Dog Park has been dismantled. The 
overall transition went extremely well thanks to Carlos Mendoza, CCSD staff, and Mr. Tim Roche from 
the PROS Commission. There is a significant amount of activity, both human and canine, at the new dog 
park located on the East Ranch at the Rodeo Grounds.   

5



 
 

 

 
The Stuart Street Tank panel replacement project has been completed and the tank is back in service. If 
you recall, the overall cost of the project was $41,000.00. This included contract management, material 
and construction cost. When the panels were being removed, the contractors found additional corrosion 
that need to be remediated before work could continue. Under an emergency order, I authorized the 
additional work at a cost of $9,000.00. The total cost of repairs for the Stuart Street Tank came to 
$50,000.00. This was $14,000.00 under the $64,000.00 that was budgeted as part of the Fiscal Year 
2017/2018 Budget. I have several slides to present of the Stuart Street Tank Repairs as part of my 
General Manager’s report.  
 
The District continues to make ongoing improvements to both the Water and Wastewater Infrastructure 
as available resources allow. Both the CIP Master list for Water and Wastewater have been updated and 
reprioritized to be used as part of the upcoming Water and Wastewater Rate Study, in addition to the 
District Financial plan. 
 
I would like to thank the County of San Luis Obispo Public Works for all the work they have done for the 
community of Cambria the last several months. The County, in preparation for the upcoming rains, has 
reinforced the entire hill by lift station B1 with plastic - adjacent to Tin City. If you recall last year, the hill 
behind the lift station experienced a mud slide that threatened the station. The County has secured the 
area with plastic and sandbags to protect the structure from future rains and flooding. The County has 
also done a superior job in cleaning out the drainage ditches of vegetation and sediment along San 
Simeon Creek Road, and has replaced a collapsed culvert in preparation for the rainy season. Staff is 
also working with State Parks on removing debris from another creek channel that could inhibit the natural 
flow of water within the creek during heavy rains. This multifaceted, multi-jurisdictional approach, in 
addition to the wet weather preparedness work that has already been done or is soon to be underway, 
will significantly reduce the impacts to the Impoundment Basin. I will continue to work with the County 
regarding additional long term improvements to the drainage culvert and adjacent roadway areas along 
the San Simeon Creek Road. These efforts could take one additional year to complete. With the rains 
upon us, everyone’s efforts will pay off.  
 
Staff also continues to work closely with the County of San Luis Obispo Planning Department on the 
District’s Regular Coastal Development Permit for the Sustainable Water Facility. District staff conducted 
a conference call with staff from both the California Coastal Commission and County Planning 
Department regarding the Regular Coastal Development Permit for the Sustainable Water Facility. We 
will meet with County Staff on January 17, 2018.  
 
Staff also continues to work closely with the State Water Resources Control Board regarding the licensing 
of the District’s water rights for both the San Simeon and Santa Rosa aquifers. Staff anticipates the matter 
being resolved within the next few months. I continue to reach out to Mitchell Moody regarding the status 
of our request for licensing.   
 
Finally, staff continues to work closely with the San Luis Obispo Sheriff’s Department regarding the 
homeless issue within Cambria, specifically within the boundaries of the CCSD property. Carlos and staff 
have cleaned up a total of six encampments.  
 
Department Reports: 
 
ADMINISTRATION:  
 
Human Resources: 
We are currently recruiting for Reserve Firefighters. 
 
We held Wastewater Operator-In-Training (OIT) and Grade 1 Operator interviews on December 27, 2017 
and held a second interview on Friday, January 5, 2018. 
 

6



 
 

 

We have filled the vacancy for the Administrative Technician IV position. The candidate will start work on 
January 22, 2018. 
 
Information Technology:  
TekTegrity will install the Microsoft Office 365 licensing on each computer this month. The server has 
been installed at the Fire Department and the wireless access points are working great. 
 
Commissions and Committees:  
Haley handles the creation, distribution and posting of the PROS Commission meeting agendas and 
minutes. The meeting agendas can be found on the CCSD website. The PROS Commissioners are 
asking the Board of Directors for consideration to appoint Kermit Johansson, currently an alternate 
PROS  Commissioner, to the PROS Commission and to appoint Stanley Cooper, currently a PROS 
Commissioner, as an alternate to the PROS Commission, with each completing the remainder of the 
other's unexpired term. They also have completed their goals and objectives for 2018, which are before 
the Board of Directors for consideration today. 
 
During the end of November and throughout the month of December, Monique worked on the following 
items:  

 
 Jerry and Monique met with Director Pierson for orientation on January 3, 2018. 

 Monique and Haley met with Jason Buhl and Stephanie Salvi on January 3, 2018 regarding a 
property at 6725 Cambria Pines Road.  

 Met with the Confidential Administrative Assistant to prepare a Special Agreement and collect a 

security deposit for Jeff Roberts. Met with Mr. Roberts to finalize the Restrictive Covenant for two 

properties on Moonstone Beach Drive. Worked with District Counsel to review and finalize the 

Restrictive Covenant in order to have it recorded and finalized.    

 Finalized processing of the paperwork to continue employment of Patrick O’Reilly. 

 Finalized the employment contract for Finance Manager. 

 Finalized December 2017 Resolutions. 

 Attended the December Manager’s meeting. 

 Managed the process for filling of the Board member vacancy. 

 Communicated with the SLO County Clerk’s Office regarding special election options, ballot 

measure, and filling the vacant Board Member seat. 

 Prepared for and published several Board meeting agenda packets; prepared and published the 

Notice for the adjourned board meeting. 

 Met with AGP twice to discuss technical options for Board meeting presentations. 

 Worked on several public record requests. 

 Met with Billing Clerk to assist in CCSD owned property list; reviewed list in preparation for the 

January 2018 board meeting. 

 Met with several employees for various Human Resources matters. 

 Worked on various Human Resources matters. 

 Met multiple times with the Administrative Technician III Payroll Technician to assist with various 

benefit administration tasks. 

 Met with Finance Manager to discuss and assist with multiple Finance Department matters. 

 Met with Water Department Supervisor. 

 Met with Wastewater Department Supervisor. 

 Met with the General Manager to finalize the SWF/CPO position description, prepared final 

position description. 

 Worked with Confidential Administrative Assist to initialize the recruitment for the CPO for the 

SWF. 

 Completed Five Things You Need to Know About the Salary History Law webinar. 

7



 
 

 

 Worked on District vehicle claim. 

 Processed legal summons. 

 Continued oversight of Wastewater Operator-In-Training (OIT), Grade I, or Grade II recruitment. 

 Met with Dental Insurance broker; reviewed dental insurance proposals; selected policy; prepared 

contract documents. 

 Met with the Administrative Technician IV and Bob Gresens regarding the exit of the Admin 

Technician IV. 

 Phone conference with TekTegrity regarding the server and Wi-Fi access points install. 

 
FACILITIES AND RESOURCES: 

1. Fiscalini Ranch Preserve:    

a. Trail Work: 

i. Round pressure treated posts were placed on forest trail heads.   

1. These post will allow for quickly closing down of trails due to wind storms, 

trees down or when maintenance is being performed.  

b. Wedding: A small wedding ceremony was held on bluff trail on January 6th.  

i. On average 3-6 wedding ceremonies are held per year on the Ranch. 

ii. Wedding ceremonies are allowed per the Management Plan and are regulated 

through an events policy. 

2. Community Park: 

a. Community Park has been completed and is now being used: 

i. Dog Park: CCSD staff moved furniture, signs, water bowls from old dog park to 

new park. 

ii. Signs: New rules signs were made and installed at new park. 

b. Old Dog Park: 

i. CCSD Staff ordered a roll off dumpster in preparation for removal of old dog park.  

ii. On Wednesday December 27th CCSD Staff began dismantling the park. Wire 

fence, posts and gates were removed.  

iii. Trees were pruned and branches chipped 

3. Vets Hall: 

a. Floors:  

i. Dining room and main hall floors were refinished.   

ii. From January 6th- January 11th no events were scheduled at Vets Hall to allow 

work on floors.  

iii. CCSD Staff, stripped, cleaned and waxed floors 

b. Dispensers: 

i. Brand new paper dispensers were installed in restrooms and kitchen. 

c. Fire Extinguishers-Kitchen: 

i. All fire extinguishers and fire suppression in the kitchen were serviced and tested.  

d. 24 events were held since last monthly Board Meeting.  

i. Events included: CCSD Special Board Meetings and SLO Sherriff Town Hall 

Meeting   

4. Street Lights: 

a. CCSD Staff inspected all CCSD owned street lights on Main St.  

i. 10 lights were identified as not working.  

ii. 5 street lights have been repaired. The remaining 5 needed new ballasts. Ballasts 

have been ordered and work will be scheduled as soon as parts arrive.   

5. Public Restrooms: 

a. Public restroom on Sheffield St. was closed during the week of December 12th. Restroom 

on Center St. was closed during week of December 18th. 

8



 
 

 

b. During closure CCSD staff pressure washed all interior and exterior walls and floors, re 

sealed concrete floors, re painted interiors walls, repaired partitions and dispensers.  

c. Portable restrooms were placed on site for public use while work was being done.  

6. Pocket Park Center St. 

a. CCSD Staff removed old picket fence from park. A new split rail fence was installed.  

 
ENGINEER: 
 
Key activities since the December 14 Board meeting report, (report prepared on December 1, 2017 to 
the date of this report’s preparation, which was January 9, 2018), have included:   
 

 Sustainable Water Facility (SWF):  
  

o The Advanced Water Treatment Facility (AWTP) has remained off line. 
o The monthly Title 22 self-monitoring report for December 2017 was submitted to the 

RWQCB on January 4, 2018, which was eleven days before its due date. 
o The RWQCB approved a low threat discharge permit, which was needed to implement the 

impoundment basin closure plan. 
o Staff is completing preparations for emptying impoundment per the RWQCB approved 

closure plan. These activities include having two 21,000 gallon Baker tanks delivered to 
the SWF site on January 17, 2107.  Additionally, staff training on the use of a 
spectrophotometer to measure boron is being coordinated with the manufacture’s expert.  
Staff also met with Alpha Electrical in setting up temporary power and controls for the 
pump that will transfer water out of the pond to the Baker tanks, as well as the pump that 
will meter water into the WWTP effluent pipeline.      

o With the recent arrival of rains, grass starting to grow within the recently completed 
drainage swale and hydro-seeded areas to prevent erosion.  

 
 

 
 
12/7/2017 View looking south along the new drainage swale that is located to the east of the 
impoundment.  Recently hydro-seeded areas show as green areas.  The eastern fencing shown to the 
right of the new swale was repaired during late summer/early fall of 2107.   
 

9



 
 

 

o West Coast Tree has also assisted with placing sand and gravel bags to further prevent 
erosion during the winter rainy season.   

o Staff continues to coordinate with County Planning staff on the Regular Coastal 
Development Permitting process. To date of this report, our next meeting with County staff 
is scheduled for January 17, 2018.   

 

 Permit Counter: 
 

o For the 2017 Calendar Year, 6 Transfers of Position, 21 Assignments, 40 Voluntary Lot 
Mergers, and 59 Remodel Applications were reviewed and processed. So far in January 
2018, 1 Voluntary Lot Merger and 2 Remodel Applications have been reviewed and 
processed. 

 

 Miscellaneous Water and Wastewater Plant Projects and Repairs:   
o Influent Screen.  To save on installation costs, a revised layout of the influent  screen has 

been completed that will place the new screen on top of an existing grit tank as opposed 
to constructing a new reinforce concrete structure.  New bids are being requested based 
on this revised approach.  

o See water portion of report for a discussion on the recently completed repairs to the 
smaller 125,000-gallon Stuart Street tank.  

o Staff worked with TekTegrity on replacing of the District Engineer’s computer  
 

 Staffing 
o Please join us in wishing Carolyn Winfrey the best as she has accepted a new position in 

Colorado Springs, Colorado, and will be moving after January 11, 2018.  Fortunately, 
Carolyn has agreed to work under a contract arrangement on our RWQCB reporting for 
the next three months as we train new staff.  Carolyn’s unique combination of enthusiasm, 
work ethic, and expertise will be greatly missed.   

 
 
Well Level reports from January 2, 2018 readings are attached, and are also being made available for 
review on the District’s website at www.cambriacsd.org   
 
 
WASTEWATER: 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations  

 We have replaced the motor on effluent pump 2. The old motor was sent out for inspection and 

rewinding. 

 The new pressure relief valve for the plant water (3W) system has been installed.  

 The fire extinguishers have all been inspected and are good for one more year. 

 We have added all of the fire extinguishers to the monthly safety list. 

Collection Systems & Lift Stations 

 Seth Sutherland has provided the Trimble GPS along with a new tablet for the collection system. 

Now as staff checks or works on the system, the information is uploaded to the network and 

locations are being adjusted. 

 We are continuing our ongoing campaign to locate the source of groundwater and storm water 

(I.e., infiltration and inflow, or I & I) that is getting into the collection system. When feasible, 

corrections are being made, such as repairing and replacing leaky manhole covers.  

 The Vactor truck has been in the field cleaning lines and logging the information onto the GIS.  

 We were tagged at lift station B-3. Delon and Tim painted over the area affected and now we 

need to add this lift station to the list of buildings that need to be painted. 

Laboratory:  

10

http://www.cambriacsd.org/


 
 

 

 Abalone Coast continued to provide the services of a certified laboratory analyst for those 

analyses that are reported to the state. Currently, Abalone’s Amanda Smith is calibrating the 

online pH meter on a monthly basis.  

 Abalone is still calibrating the pH probe on a monthly basis. 

Administrative:  

 We have started interviews for the vacant position here at the wastewater plant. 

WATER: 
1. Repair of the smaller, 125,000-gallon Stuart Street Tank was completed from December 19th 

through December 21, 2017. Will Bellis of ATS completed design of this repair, and also 

inspected the repair work by Superior Tank. The original repair called for the replacement of 

seven roof panels and three of the top tier side panels, which were severely corroded. During 

removal of the seven roof panels it was discovered that three more panels would have to be 

removed and replaced. Approval of this added change was issued due to there being nothing 

to bolt the new panels onto, as well as the cost potentially doubling if Superior Tank’s crew 

were to stop and remobilize back to the site for the additional three panels. Immediately 

following the repair, Water Department Staff filled the tank. The tank remained filled and offline 

until a Bacti sample could be analyzed by FGL labs. The Water Department received the 

analysis indicating a passed Bacti test on January 2, 2018, which resulted in the tank being 

placed back into service that same day.  

 
2. On December 4th, 2017, Gold Coast Environmental was able to find and diagnose the problem 

with the Well SS-3 flow meter, which had been errantly reading too low. Gold Coast 

Environmental was able to calibrate the meter, and it has since been working correctly. 

 
3. On December 27th, Water Department staff upgraded the existing water service located at 

5233 Hillcrest to meet fire sprinkler flow requirements. Cost for this work is reimbursed to the 

District per the terms of a service line replacement agreement.  

 
4. The Case Backhoe tractor used primarily by the Water Department for loading material into 

the dump truck and for larger excavations, would not start. Water Department operator Ben 

Grosskreutz was able to diagnose and repair a fuel problem, which saved the District on the 

potential cost associated with a travelling on-site tractor mechanic. 

 
5. While conducting daily production rounds, Water Operator Travis Holt noticed a wet spot near 

the pressure regulator outside of the Well SS3 building. Water passes thru this regulator to 

the Chlorine analyzer and the turbidimeter for the entire San Simeon well field. Travis 

excavated the leaking pressure regulator and installed a new one with new hardware. It was 

fortunate that Travis observed this leak before it got worse. Had the leak progressed and 

worsened, it could have affected the accuracy of the Chlorine analyzer and turbidity meter. 

 
6. On December 27, 2017, the District received notice that Travis Holt successfully passed his 

Grade Three Treatment exam. The CCSD now employs three Water Department operators 

with a Grade T3 Water Treatment License.  

 
7. The SWF currently remains offline. Water Department staff have continued to perform 

groundwater sampling per the facility’s state-issued monitoring and reporting program (MRP).  

Operator Larry Moore has continued to oversee maintenance of the SWF. Maintenance 

activities include repairing leaks and monthly circulation of Preservol within the filter 

membranes and reverse osmosis elements. Other activities include the mowing of weeds 

11



 
 

 

around the facility and general housekeeping.  Water Department staff have also worked 

alongside John Allchin, Bob Gresens, Carolyn Winfrey and Jerry Gruber to facilitate the 

Impoundment Basin Closure Plan. 

 
8. In December of 2017 Water Department staff completed the following: 

 
157 meters were read for billing and possible leaks.  Additional re-reads were also performed 
for billing. 
 
Staff assisted 24 rate payers with high usage or possible leaks. 
 
2 meters were locked or unlocked 
 
7 meters were shut off for repairs 
 
3 leaks in the distribution system were repaired. 
 
7 retrofit inspections were performed. 
 
28 USA locations were completed 
 
2 meter shut offs were replaced 
 
5 fire hydrants were raised to allow better access for the Fire Department. 
 
2 fire hydrant valves were located and raised. Just in case the fire hydrant is damaged, the 
valve will be much easier to find and shut off in an emergency. 
 
The clay-valve pressure/flow regulator at SR4 started leaking. Staff noticed and promptly 
repaired. 
 

9. Staff also completed the daily tasks of water treatment and distribution, including the daily 

inspections of all wells, well pumps and CL2 pumps, daily recording of water production, daily 

sampling of the water produced at active well heads, weekly routine sampling of water in the 

distribution system, and weekly inspections of all water facilities including tank sites and 

pressure reducing vaults. Any and all routine monthly and quarterly sampling required by the 

state of California. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachments:  01 CCSD Departmental and Operational Goals for 2018 

02 CCSD Departmental and Operational Goals for 2018 PowerPoint Presentation 
03 General Manager PowerPoint Presentation 
04 2018 Tree Removal Letter 
05 Production and Well graphs 
06 Balance Public Relations January 2018 Report 
07 Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

12



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 
 

CCSD Departmental and Operational Goals for 2018 
 
I have had the opportunity to work collaboratively with each Department Manager regarding the 
District’s Operational Goals for 2018. I would like to thank everyone for their input. Although the 
goals presented to the CCSD Board for operations are not all inclusive, I would like to point out 
that they represent continuing significant improvements in each Department for the CCSD and 
for the Community of Cambria. There are a few items that I would like to discuss with the Board 
that will help bring clarity to the goals and lay the foundation for the completion of the goals listed 
below. I am hopeful that three goals in particular will be adopted by the CCSD Board of Directors 
as their goals that will support, add to, or take away from the existing goals based on established 
priorities and available fiscal and human resources. I would like to bring a proposal for consulting 
services for a Strategic Plan forward to the Board in February 2018 for consideration. Two 
important components within the Strategic Plan will be a Mission Statement for the CCSD. Once 
the Strategic Plan, Mission Statement and Vision Statement have been agreed upon and 
established, the operational goals presented today may change. The goals the Board derives 
may also change once the Strategic Plan is developed. I would recommend that we move 
forward with the operational goals presented to the Board in order to accomplish items within 
every Department that need to be improved upon and or implemented.  
 
Another important variable to note with the operational goals is the availability of financial 
resources. The District is moving forward with a Water and Wastewater Rate Study that will take 
a comprehensive look at the operational cost of both departments, in addition to a 
comprehensive look at the District’s infrastructure needs from a CIP perspective and a long-term 
financial plan perspective. The Board will need to evaluate several options from a policy 
standpoint that will be presented by Bartle Wells and Associates and determine what path they 
will want to take.  
 
Another important variable within the operational goals is the opportunity for possible grant 
funding for shovel ready projects. I have mentioned numerous times that the District will need to 
properly position itself for grant available funding for Water and Wastewater Projects, due to the 
highly competitive environment regarding the limited available funds . I use the words “shovel 
ready projects” because that is the benchmark we will need to establish within the CCSD to be 
seriously considered, and to be highly competitive for Water and Wastewater project funding. 
The three major components for “shovel ready projects” are: financial, engineering and 
environmental. The CCSD will need to have the available financial resources in place to match 
the required funding to be successful for grant funding. The CCSD will also need to be able to 
cover the debt portion of the matching funds in order to be competitive; hopefully this will be 
addressed and resolved with the current rate study.  
 
Secondly, the District will need to have the engineering part of a project complete, again, before 
we can move forward with the grant process. In other words, the project, whatever it may be, 
needs to be fully designed and certified by a practicing engineer. This includes plans, 
specifications, and drawings to be submitted as part of the grant application process.  
 
Third, the CCSD needs to make sure that any and all environmental documents are completed 
relating to the proposed project. The environmental documents based on the size and complexity 
of the project could be something as simple as a mitigated negative declaration or could be as 

13



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 
complexed as a full Environmental Impact Report- EIR. As you can see, the District will need to 
be strategic in our approach for grant funding with the understanding that the requirements and 
timing of a project can be complex and require a significant amount of up front funding.  
 
The last item I would like to discuss regarding the operational goals for 2018 is unexpected 
priorities that may arise during the course of the year that may divert the District’s limited financial 
and human resources away from the established goals to other immediate areas of higher 
priority. An example of this could be something along the lines of the leak at the Blue Bird Inn. 
Staff spent significant time locating the leak and making the necessary repairs to the main water 
line. Staff still needs to design, permit, install, and fund the replacement main line running over 
the pedestrian bridge. Since the District works in a very sensitive environmental area that is 
heavy regulated, the Board should be periodically brought up to date by the General Manager 
on available resources both from a financial and human resources perspective.  
 
I would like to thank the CCSD Board of Directors for giving me the opportunity to work with the 
District staff on the development of the operational goals for 2018.  
 
Departmental Operational Goals for 2018 are listed below in alphabetical order by 
department.  
 
ADMINISTRATION:  
 
FINANCE: 
 

 Maintain fiscal oversight over CCSD budget for all departments. 

 Complete the Water and Wastewater Rate study and District Financial Plan. 

 Move forward with the Proposition 218 process for Water and Wastewater Departments. 

 Implement the new accounting software program.  

 Implement monthly utility billing process. 

 Implement new budget status reports utilizing the existing MOMS software for the Management 

team that enhance and improve the budget monitoring system for the District. In addition, have 

monthly budget meetings with management staff.   

 Implement a new bank reconciliation program using the MOMS cash management program that 

will improve the time it takes to reconcile the monthly bank statements.   

 Complete the PERS Audit requirements prior to the January 31, 2018 deadline.    

 Provide finance staff with educational training (Attending Seminars) in the areas of Customer 

Service, Accounts Payable, Payroll, and other areas related to the District’s financial operations.   

 Fully implement the new accounting software program Tyler Incode. 

 Develop accounting & procedures manual for the Finance Department. 

 Prepare Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and participate in the Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Awards Program. Benefits are good recognition for the 

Cambria Community Services District and helping District obtain a lower interest rate when 

seeking financing for equipment and infrastructure. 

 Continue to evaluate internal controls and make improvements where needed.   

 Develop a budget that enhances transparency and promotes accountability. In addition, start the 

process of developing a budget that is awarded the distinguished budget award through the 

Government Finance Officers Association. 

14



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES: 

 Update all District Personnel Policies 

 Prepare for Labor Negotiations for all three employee groups 

 Plan, lead, and organize the training and compliance requirements for CCSD Managers, and 
CCSD Board of Directors.   

 Create bi-annual newsletter 

 Implement bi-weekly staff meetings 

 Create Information Technology Network Policy 

 Continue professional development of staff 
 

 
DISTRICT CLERK: 

 Continue to develop Records Management Policy  

 Identify & Destroy Old Records Accordingly 

 Continue to develop and improve the CCSD website 

 Continue professional development of staff 
 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 

 Allow the CCSD Board of Directors to consider funding the SAFER firefighter position through a 
ballot measure.  

 Continue with hydrant maintenance and testing program to ensure functionality of infrastructure. 

 Finalize department strategic plan, covering next 5 to 10 years and incorporate into the District 
Strategic Plan.   

 Modify and adopt the next update to the California Fire Code, due later this year. This will keep 
us current with required fire-safe construction and WUI code building requirements. 

 Update and expand the current Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program to capture all of the 
community. This needs to be done to provide for better fire safety and forest health. 

 Update and revise all current SOP’s (standard operating procedures) to ensure we are being 
consistent and safe in our emergency service delivery. 

 Update and revise the reserve firefighter new hire academy. 

 Update all task books and promotional tracks for each recognized position.   

 Implement new mandated NFIRS (national fire incident reporting system) electronic reporting 
system. 

 Pursue and apply for all available grants, secondary to our recent MJHMP, for community safety 
and mitigation efforts 

 
FACILITIES AND RESOURCES DEPARTMENT: 
 

 Consider funding for one additional staff member for purposes of maintaining CCSD assets.  

 Repair erosion gully on Fiscalini Ranch Preserve 
o During the winter of 2017 an erosion gully on Ranch collapsed. 
o Civil Design Studios has been assisting in permitting process 
o Scheduled time: Spring-Summer 

 Resurface Bluff Trail on Fiscalini Ranch 

o With assistance from FFRP 

o Scheduled time: Summer 

 Weed abate all CCSD Lots on weed abatement list 

15



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 
o Scheduled time: June-August 

 Create 100’ fire breaks around perimeter of Fiscalini Ranch 

o Scheduled time: June-August 

 Complete phase 2 of Eucalyptus Project 
o Phase 1- Removal of eucalyptus saplings and weed control of ivy was completed in 2017 
o Phase 2- Removal of all trees under 18” diameter 
o Scheduled time: August-October 

 3 acre forest restoration project on Ridge Trail/Trenton Trail 
o This will continue the work that has been done last 3 years  

o Scheduled time: August-October  

 Forest Restoration project on forest above Marine Terrace Trail 
o Almost 100% mortality on this section of forest. 
o Work will include replanting 
o Scheduled time: August-October 

 Invasive plant control on Fiscalini Ranch 
o Work to remove invasive plants such as, Italian thistle, star thistle, bull thistle, pampas 

grass etc. 
o Scheduled work: February- May 

 Resurface Santa Rosa Creek Trail South End  
o Scheduled work: March-May 

 
 
UTILITIES: 
SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY (SWF): 

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.  

 Operate the SWF when needed and ensure that all regulatory and environmental requirements 
are met.   

 Empty Brine Pond and complete the Closure Plan as stipulated.  

 Renew Brine Disposal Agreement with the South County Sanitation District. 

 Hire Chief Plant Operator. 

 Continue to make needed improvements to the SWF such as battery back-ups and the ability to 
migrate data from SWF into reports. 

 Update the Operation Maintenance and Management Plan (OMMP). 

 Continue to work collaboratively with the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).  
Provide empirical data to the RWQCB relating to water quality testing results that would allow the 
District to reduce sampling requirement, thus reducing the overall cost associated with running 
the SWF.   

 Continue to work with the SLO County Planning Department regarding the Regular Coastal 
Development Permit. Obtain approval of the Coastal Development Permit by the SLO County 
Planning Commission and the County Board of Supervisors during the year of 2018.   

 Continue to develop relationships and work collaboratively with all Federal, State, and Local 
Regulatory Agencies.   

 Continue professional development of staff.  

 Continue to make needed improvements to the SWF such as battery back-ups UPS 
power for MCC and the ability to migrate data from SWF into reports. 
 

 
WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT:   

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.  

16



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 

 Develop and distribute new, improved, and accurate Consumer Confidence Report in a 
timely and professional manner to regulatory agencies and CCSD customers.  

 Maintain fiscal responsibility within the existing budget. 

 Seek grant funding for shovel ready projects where applicable (see comments regarding 
grant funding listed above)  

 Install Influent Screen. 

 Utilize District’s existing GIS system to its maximum potential to improve department 
efficiencies. 

 Solicit Engineering services for design of main motor control center at WWTP. 

 Continue to improve the overall operations of the WWTP. 

 Take Clarifier 1 offline and clean. 

 Take one of the two aeration basins offline and clean. 

 Continue to evaluate and resolve Intrusion and Infiltration challenges within the 
Collection System as resources through the revised rate structure and budget process 
are made available.  

 Consider two additional staff members designated specifically for the Collection System. 

 Purchase new Vactor Truck if rate adjustments are successful.  

 Implement cost saving measures relating to energy usage at the WWTP.   

 Update, complete, and submit a revised Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP). 

 Complete an Injury and Illness Prevention Program. 

 Update Keep-Trak program to include the Collection system. 

 Continue to build Asset Management program relating to all WWTP equipment. 

 Continue to update and implement an aggressive Safety Program. 

 Migrate critical Lift stations into SCADA system as resources are made available.  

 Continue to update aging Lift Stations to include drywells, wet wells, vaults, pumps, 
motors, panels, and generators as resources are made available.  

 Incorporate non-potable water for sludge press operations.  

 Continue professional development of staff.  
 
WATER DEPARTMENT:  

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.  

 Maintain fiscal responsibility within the existing budget. 

 Design and permit the replacement of the temporary bypass over the pedestrian bridge. 

 Seek and implement additional training as it relates to the Water Department’s SCADA 
system and ensure that SCADA is being used to its maximum potential.  

 Evaluate all existing residential and commercial meters and determine a timeline and cost 
associated with developing a water meter replacement program.  Work collaboratively 
with the Finance Department regarding the next generation of meters to be replaced and 
compatibility as it relates to the new Financial Software.  

 Utilize District’s existing GIS system to its maximum potential to improve department 
efficiencies 

 Ensure that all Pressure Reducing Valves within the CCSD service area are functioning 
properly and establish a preventative maintenance program for the PRVs.  

 Continue to work collaboratively with the CCSD Fire Department regarding a Fire Hydrant 
Flushing program.   

17



Attachment to SR 4A  
GM Report 

 

 Create a maintenance program to identify all CCSD water distribution valves.  
Aggressively exercise distribution valves and identify the valves and replace them as 
resources allow.   

 Work collaboratively with the Wastewater Department and evaluate feasibility of 
implementing their Keep-Trak asset management and maintenance system and 
determine if this program could be utilized for the Water Department’s resources.  

 Continue to evaluate problem areas within the Water Distribution System that need to be 
upgraded in size or replaced.  

 Purchase necessary equipment to allow the Water Department to efficiently perform their 
work duties. This includes tools, one additional vehicle, a new dump truck, a trailer 
mounted Vactor system for leak repairs and valve accessibility, a small tractor/backhoe, 
to replace the departments current John Deere Tractor, a new compressor and 
jackhammer.   

 Increase available funding for asphalt repairs throughout Cambria.  

 Continue professional development of staff. 

18



Cambria Community Services District

2018 Departmental & Operational Goals

19



FINANCE:

 Maintain fiscal oversight over CCSD budget for all departments.

 Complete the Water and Wastewater Rate study and District Financial Plan.

 Move forward with the Proposition 218 process for Water and Wastewater Departments.

 Implement the new accounting software program.

 Implement monthly utility billing process.

 Implement new budget status reports utilizing the existing MOMS software for the Management team

that enhance and improve the budget monitoring system for the District. In addition, have monthly

budget meetings with management staff.

 Implement a new bank reconciliation program using the MOMS cash management program that will

improve the time it takes to reconcile the monthly bank statements.

 Complete the PERS Audit requirements prior to the January 31, 2018 deadline.

 Provide finance staff with educational training (Attending Seminars) in the areas of Customer Service,

Accounts Payable, Payroll, and other areas related to the District’s financial operations.

 Fully implement the new accounting software program Tyler Incode.

 Develop accounting & procedures manual for the Finance Department.

 Prepare Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and participate in the Certificate of

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Awards Program. Benefits are good recognition for the Cambria

Community Services District and helping District obtain a lower interest rate when seeking financing for

equipment and infrastructure.

 Continue to evaluate internal controls and make improvements where needed.

 Develop a budget that enhances transparency and promotes accountability. In addition, start the

process of developing a budget that is awarded the distinguished budget award through the

Government Finance Officers Association.

20



HUMAN RESOURCES:

 Update all District Personnel Policies

 Prepare for Labor Negotiations for all three employee groups

 Plan, lead, and organize the training and compliance requirements for CCSD Managers, and CCSD Board of

Directors.

 Create bi-annual newsletter

 Implement bi-weekly staff meetings

 Create Information Technology Network Policy

 Continue professional development of staff

DISTRICT CLERK:

 Continue to develop Records Management Policy

 Identify & Destroy Old Records Accordingly

 Continue to develop and improve the CCSD website

 Continue professional development of staff

21



FIRE DEPARTMENT:

 Allow the CCSD Board of Directors to consider funding the SAFER firefighter position through a ballot

measure.

 Continue with hydrant maintenance and testing program to ensure functionality of infrastructure.

 Finalize department strategic plan, covering next 5 to 10 years and incorporate into the District

Strategic Plan.

 Modify and adopt the next update to the California Fire Code, due later this year. This will keep us

current with required fire-safe construction and WUI code building requirements.

 Update and expand the current Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program to capture all of the

community. This needs to be done to provide for better fire safety and forest health.

 Update and revise all current SOP’s (standard operating procedures) to ensure we are being

consistent and safe in our emergency service delivery.

 Update and revise the reserve firefighter new hire academy.

 Update all task books and promotional tracks for each recognized position.

 Implement new mandated NFIRS (national fire incident reporting system) electronic reporting system.

 Pursue and apply for all available grants, secondary to our recent MJHMP, for community safety and

mitigation efforts

22



FACILITIES AND RESOURCES DEPARTMENT:

• Consider funding for one additional staff member for purposes of maintaining CCSD assets.

• Repair erosion gully on Fiscalini Ranch Preserve

o During the winter of 2017 an erosion gully on Ranch collapsed.

o Civil Design Studios has been assisting in permitting process

o Scheduled time: Spring-Summer

 Resurface Bluff Trail on Fiscalini Ranch

o With assistance from FFRP

o Scheduled time: Summer

 Weed abate all CCSD Lots on weed abatement list

o Scheduled time: June-August

 Create 100’ fire breaks around perimeter of Fiscalini Ranch

o Scheduled time: June-August

 Complete phase 2 of Eucalyptus Project

o Phase 1- Removal of eucalyptus saplings and weed control of ivy was completed in 2017

o Phase 2- Removal of all trees under 18” diameter

o Scheduled time: August-October

 3 acre forest restoration project on Ridge Trail/Trenton Trail

o This will continue the work that has been done last 3 years

o Scheduled time: August-October

 Forest Restoration project on forest above Marine Terrace Trail

o Almost 100% mortality on this section of forest.

o Work will include replanting

o Scheduled time: August-October

 Invasive plant control on Fiscalini Ranch

o Work to remove invasive plants such as, Italian thistle, star thistle, bull thistle, pampas grass etc.

o Scheduled work: February- May

 Resurface Santa Rosa Creek Trail South End

o Scheduled work: March-May

23



UTILITIES:

SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY (SWF):

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.

 Operate the SWF when needed and ensure that all regulatory and environmental requirements are met.

 Empty Brine Pond and complete the Closure Plan as stipulated.

 Renew Brine Disposal Agreement with the South County Sanitation District.

 Hire Chief Plant Operator.

 Continue to make needed improvements to the SWF such as battery back-ups and the ability to migrate
data from SWF into reports.

 Update the Operation Maintenance and Management Plan (OMMP).

 Continue to work collaboratively with the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).

Provide empirical data to the RWQCB relating to water quality testing results that would allow the District
to reduce sampling requirement, thus reducing the overall cost associated with running the SWF.

 Continue to work with the SLO County Planning Department regarding the Regular Coastal Development

Permit. Obtain approval of the Coastal Development Permit by the SLO County Planning Commission
and the County Board of Supervisors during the year of 2018.

 Continue to develop relationships and work collaboratively with all Federal, State, and Local Regulatory
Agencies.

 Continue professional development of staff.

 Continue to make needed improvements to the SWF such as battery back-ups UPS power for MCC and

the ability to migrate data from SWF into reports.

24



WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT:

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.

 Develop and distribute new, improved, and accurate Consumer Confidence Report in a timely and professional
manner to regulatory agencies and CCSD customers.

 Maintain fiscal responsibility within the existing budget.

 Seek grant funding for shovel ready projects where applicable (see comments regarding grant funding listed

above)

 Install Influent Screen.

 Utilize District’s existing GIS system to its maximum potential to improve department efficiencies.

 Solicit Engineering services for design of main motor control center at WWTP.

 Continue to improve the overall operations of the WWTP.

 Take Clarifier 1 offline and clean.

 Take one of the two aeration basins offline and clean.

 Continue to evaluate and resolve Intrusion and Infiltration challenges within the Collection System as resources

through the revised rate structure and budget process are made available.

 Consider two additional staff members designated specifically for the Collection System.

 Purchase new Vactor Truck if rate adjustments are successful.

 Implement cost saving measures relating to energy usage at the WWTP.

 Update, complete, and submit a revised Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP).

 Complete an Injury and Illness Prevention Program.

 Update Keep-Trak program to include the Collection system.

 Continue to build Asset Management program relating to all WWTP equipment.

 Continue to update and implement an aggressive Safety Program.

 Migrate critical Lift stations into SCADA system as resources are made available.

 Continue to update aging Lift Stations to include drywells, wet wells, vaults, pumps, motors, panels, and

generators as resources are made available.

 Incorporate non-potable water for sludge press operations.

 Continue professional development of staff.

25



WATER DEPARTMENT:

 Ensure timely submittal of required regulatory reports.
 Maintain fiscal responsibility within the existing budget.

 Design and permit the replacement of the temporary bypass over the pedestrian bridge.

 Seek and implement additional training as it relates to the Water Department’s SCADA system and ensure that
SCADA is being used to its maximum potential.

 Evaluate all existing residential and commercial meters and determine a timeline and cost associated with

developing a water meter replacement program. Work collaboratively with the Finance Department regarding
the next generation of meters to be replaced and compatibility as it relates to the new Financial Software.

 Utilize District’s existing GIS system to its maximum potential to improve department efficiencies

 Ensure that all Pressure Reducing Valves within the CCSD service area are functioning properly and establish a
preventative maintenance program for the PRVs.

 Continue to work collaboratively with the CCSD Fire Department regarding a Fire Hydrant Flushing program.

 Create a maintenance program to identify all CCSD water distribution valves. Aggressively exercise distribution
valves and identify the valves and replace them as resources allow.

 Work collaboratively with the Wastewater Department and evaluate feasibility of implementing their Keep-Trak

asset management and maintenance system and determine if this program could be utilized for the Water
Department’s resources.

 Continue to evaluate problem areas within the Water Distribution System that need to be upgraded in size or
replaced.

 Purchase necessary equipment to allow the Water Department to efficiently perform their work duties. This

includes tools, one additional vehicle, a new dump truck, a trailer mounted Vactor system for leak repairs and

valve accessibility, a small tractor/backhoe, to replace the departments current John Deere Tractor, a new
compressor and jackhammer.

 Increase available funding for asphalt repairs throughout Cambria.

 Continue professional development of staff.

26



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT

Board of  Directors Regular Meeting

January 18, 2018

27



Water Department – Stuart Street Tank Project

Superior Tank removed the most severely corroded roofing. After removal of the roof and a bunch of the rust scale, it was determined that 3 
shell panels were too far gone to bolt to. Everyone agreed that changing the contract to add the replacement of those shell panels would increase the 
likelihood that this tank can stay in service for the desired 5 more years. The cost and schedule to change out the panels while Superior was on site, 

with the adjacent roof off, is significantly lower than having them come back later.

28



29



30



31



32



33



This pressure regulator is located at SS3. The water that goes 
through the regulator is for the chlorine analyzer and the 

turbidimeter for the entire SS wellfield.

34



35



 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & BUILDING 
MARVIN A. ROSE, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

 

 

 
 

976 Osos Street, Room 300  |  San Luis Obispo, CA 93408  |  (P) 805-781-5600  |  7-1-1 TTY/TRS Relay 
planning@co.slo.ca.us  |  www.sloplanning.org 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
STREAMLINED PROCESS FOR HAZARDOUS TREE REMOVAL IN CAMBRIA 

 
Q: How do I get County approval for removing a hazardous tree on my Cambria property? 
 
A: Call Cal Fire at 927-6240 or 927-4262 and request that they send a representative to your property to 
tag the hazardous tree. You are then free to remove the hazardous tree. No further County approval is 
required. 
 
Q: What are my responsibilities after I remove a hazardous tree on my Cambria property? 
 
A: You are required to replant at a 1:1 ratio and, within 45 days of tree removal, submit evidence of removal 
and replacement (photographs, receipts, etc.) to the Department of Planning and Building at the address 
below:   

 
Department of Planning and Building 
976 Osos Street, Room 300 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 

 
Q: What type of trees do I replant and where do I get them? 
 
A: Your replacement seedlings must be one gallon size and the same species that you removed.  Removed 
pines shall be replaced with native Monterey pine trees (pinus radiata var. macrocarpa). These seedlings 
are available through Greenspace (The Cambria Land Trust): www.greenspacecambria.org / (805) 927-
2866 / info@greenspacecambria.org.  
 
No out of the area Monterey pine stock shall be used. 
 
Q: Will the County assist with the removal of hazardous trees on my parcel? 
 
A: This streamlined process makes it easier for Cambria landowners to get approval to remove hazardous 
trees, but it does not assist with the actual removal of the trees.  You are responsible for removing the 
hazardous trees yourself (at your own risk) or hiring a licensed contractor to remove the trees.  
 
Q: Can I remove a healthy tree? 
 
A: Only hazardous trees tagged by Cal Fire are eligible for removal under this streamlined process. Healthy 
trees that are not posing a risk to life or property cannot be removed unless they are associated with an 
approved coastal development permit. 
 
 
Q: What was the process for removing hazardous trees prior to this authorization? 
 

A: The usual process (prior to this authorization) for getting County approval to remove a 
hazardous tree involves paying a fee of $126 (for the first three trees) and $23 for each additional 
tree, scheduling an appointment with the County arborist to verify that each tree meets the 
County’s removal criteria, and replanting at a 4:1 ratio. 

 

36

mailto:planning@co.slo.ca.us
http://www.sloplanning.org/
http://www.greenspacecambria.org/
mailto:info@greenspacecambria.org


YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

S.S. 31.92 18.84 40.96 45.42 46.33 34.69 24.65 18.90 25.89 28.39 19.19 23.18 358.36

S.R. 6.88 14.33 5.95 9.76 17.86 28.23 32.52 32.01 16.80 12.13 19.96 20.92 217.36

SS & SR TOTAL 38.80 33.18 46.91 55.18 64.19 62.92 57.17 50.90 42.69 40.53 39.15 44.11 575.72

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 16.43 9.51 19.84 21.88 24.30 30.90 30.40 29.68 29.02 8.07 5.82 21.55 247.39

S.R. 17.87 27.34 16.71 15.60 15.74 13.87 20.45 18.12 16.65 34.27 31.97 18.30 246.89

SS & SR TOTAL 34.30 36.86 36.55 37.47 40.04 44.76 50.85 47.80 45.67 42.34 37.79 39.85 494.28

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.33 7.04 5.70 23.07

S.S. 19.95 16.65 17.16 17.79 16.18 14.14 15.14 17.39 20.36 26.17 23.74 21.23 225.89

S.R. 14.77 14.90 20.53 20.68 20.99 26.51 29.51 27.78 21.94 16.05 13.57 13.90 241.13

SS & SR TOTAL 34.72 31.55 37.69 38.47 37.17 40.65 44.65 45.17 42.30 42.22 37.31 35.13 467.02

AWTP 5.55 14.34 12.49 7.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.68 8.07 6.29 10.89 68.92

S.S. 22.93 16.97 24.90 25.03 19.39 14.40 11.94 0.00 0.76 24.32 13.74 23.81 198.17

S.R. 34.69 19.85 10.00 10.44 18.88 24.19 30.89 43.09 36.26 12.06 18.63 9.62 268.59

SS & SR TOTAL 57.62 36.82 34.90 35.47 38.27 38.59 42.82 43.09 37.01 36.37 32.36 33.44 466.76

S.S. 50.55 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 57.73 29.84 26.72 28.61 593.16

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 7.62 22.56 25.38 25.61 139.91

SS & SR TOTAL 50.55 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 65.35 52.40 52.11 54.22 733.07

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73

S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01

SS & SR TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16

S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72

SS & SR TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51

SS & SR TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94

S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54

SS & SR TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69

S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92

SS & SR TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57

SS & SR TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.18

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96

S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14

SS & SR TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

77.62 75.81 77.17 81.43 81.4328.87 53.02 71.18 77.50 80.60

Difference by Time Period

(Current Period ‐ Previous 

Period)

4.50 0.82 11.17

‐1.81 1.36 4.26 81.43
(Current YR ‐ Previous YR)

2017

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE‐FEET

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
7

DIFFERENCE
4.50 ‐3.68 10.36 17.70 24.15 18.16 6.32 3.10 ‐2.98

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
0

2
0
0
9

2
0
0
9

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
6

37



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2017

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE‐FEET

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26

S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98

SS & SR TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52

S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11

SS & SR TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83

S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05

SS & SR TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77

S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71

SS & SR TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68

SS & SR TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16

SS & SR TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51

S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29

SS & SR TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.67 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99

S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26

SS & SR TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94

S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90

SS & SR TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10

SS & SR TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50

S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90

SS & SR TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30

S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40

SS & SR TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

1
9
9
9

1
9
9
9

1
9
9
8

1
9
9
8

1
9
9
7

1
9
9
7

1
9
9
6

1
9
9
6

1
9
9
5

1
9
9
5

1
9
9
4

1
9
9
4

1
9
9
3

1
9
9
3

1
9
9
2

1
9
9
2

38



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2017

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE‐FEET

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90

S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80

SS & SR TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14

S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66

SS & SR TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60

SS & SR TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90

SS & SR TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

1
9
8
9

1
9
8
9

1
9
8
8

1
9
8
8

1
9
9
1

1
9
9
1

1
9
9
0

1
9
9
0

39



1/2/18 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 1/2/18

Reference

Distance Point Depth of

Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea

Code Water Level Level Level             Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 33.95 83.42 49.47

SR4 30.68 82.00 51.32

SR3 20.01 54.30 34.29

SR1 17.91 46.40 28.49

RP#1 46.25

RP#2 33.11 Not Read

21R3 8.27 12.88 4.61 40450

WBE 12.10 16.87 4.77

WBW 12.36 17.02 4.66

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 31.39 FEET

      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 51.32 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 8.12 11.36 3.24

MW4 12.44 15.95 3.51

MW1 17.55 42.11 24.56

MW2 17.02 38.10 21.08

MW3 22.77 49.56 26.79

9M1 28.49 65.63 37.14

9P2 10.97 19.11 8.14

9P7 11.57 20.69 9.12

9L1 16.30 27.33 11.03

RIW 15.91 25.41 9.50

SS4 16.31 25.92 9.61 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = + 1.47

MIW 17.40 29.89 12.49

SS3 20.52 33.73 13.21

SS2 19.80 33.16 13.36

SS1 19.41 32.37 12.96

11B1 34.34 105.43 71.09

11C1 28.16 98.20 70.04

PFNW 24.85 93.22 68.37

10A1 32.98 78.18 45.20

10G2 24.90 62.95 38.05

10G1 23.21 59.55 36.34

10F2 31.50 66.92 35.42

10M2 29.50 55.21 25.71

9J3 22.80 43.45 20.65

lagoon 20.39 mitigation errosion none 

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1,SS2 & SS3  = 13.18 FEET

revised 6/6/16

1/2/18

2/17/2015

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

Reference point on 16d1,miw1,miw2,miw3,9p7,riw,miw1,ss1,ss2 and ss3 updated

40



	
41



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 to December 2017 Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2017 reads

42



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 APR
L

15 M
AY

15 JU
N

E

15 JU
LY

15 AU
G

.

15 SEPT

15 O
C

T.

15 N
O

V.

15 D
EC

.

15 JAN
.

15 FEB.

15 M
AR

.

15

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - Current

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af)
1993  (691 af) 1994  (538 af) 1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af)
1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af) 2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af) 2002 (728 af)
2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af) 2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af)
2008 (707.61) 2009 (699.48) 2010 (672.41) 2011 (682.88) 2012 (724.74)
2013 (733.07) 2014 (466.76) 2015 (467.02 2016 2017

43



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

APR

M
AY

JU
N

JU
L

AU
G

SEP

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
EC

JAN

FEB

M
AR

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Mid-March 2017/2018 levels to date and 

1988 to Current Min, Max, & Average
Maximum Levels Minimum Levels Average Levels 2017

44



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

15 Apr

15 M
ay

15 June

15 July

15 Aug

15 Sept

15 O
ct

15 N
ov

15 D
ec

15 Jan

15 Feb

15 M
ar

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Last 7 years

March, 2011  - Current
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

45



BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS: 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE 
DISTRICT—Monthly Report  

 

ACTIVITIES REPORT  

PROJECT SUMMARY 

REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

January 8, 2018 Cambria Community Services District Dean Florez, Lobbyist Consultant 

STATUS SUMMARY 

Board Members: 

 

Please find below the new activity report requested and refined at the Nov. 16 Board Meeting. The new report 
accomplishes the following: 

 

1. Hours Worked and Expended 
2. Explicit Description on meeting/gathering/workshop attended. 
3. Explicit dates of meetings and purpose. 
4. Summary Narrative of the month activities 

 

SPECIFIC WORK FLOW 

TASK HOURS DATE PURPOSE NOTES 

Regulatory Work 8 Dec 5th CEQA Early Public Consultation 
Meeting: Proposed Recycled 
Water Policy Amendment  

The Recycled Water 
Policy provides goals 
for recycled water use 
in California, guidance 
for use of recycled 
water that considers 
protection of water 
quality, criteria for 
streamlined permitting 
of recycled water 
projects, and 
requirements for 
monitoring recycled 
water for constituents 
of emerging concern 
(CECs). 

46



  

 
BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS: CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT— 

Monthly Report Page 2 
 

Page 2 

 

Administrative Work 4 Dec 14th Cambria Board Meeting Directors Report, BPR 
Report--Monitoring 

Regulatory Work 7 Dec 18th Public Workshop: Proposed 
Industrial General Permit 
Amendment: 

Regulatory meeting 
discussing by State 
Water Board staff will 
hold the following 
workshops to provide 
information and 
answer questions from 
the public regarding 
the proposed Industrial 
General Permit 
Amendment. 

Legislative Work 3 Dec 18th State Parks Issue Engagement with 
Senior Staff  resolving 
monitoring issues.  

Administrative  1 Dec 18th Weekly Update with GM Gruber CCSD Ongoing Items 

Regulatory Work 8 Dec 19th STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD 

BOARD MEETING 

State Water Board staff 
expect to release a 
public draft of an 
amendment to the 
Recycled Water Policy 
by March of 2018. 

Legislative Work 2 Dec 20th Water Rights Issue Resolving timing of 
water rights 
administrative issue 
with State Water Board. 

Legislative Meetings 1 Dec 20th Meeting with Legislative Staff SRF Loan Repacking for 
communities with 
private debt. 

Regulatory Work 3 Dec 22nd Cal Fire Grant Submittal 
Formulation and Discussions 

CAL FIRE has 
announced filing 
period for Greenhouse 
Gas Grants that has a 
specific 
section/allocation for 
co-generation facilities. 

Regulatory Work 3 Dec 22nd Cal Fire Grant Submittal 
Formulation and Discussions 

FEMA has announced 
Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program grants 
available as a result of 
federal disaster 
declaration related to 
wildfires in CA 

Legislative Meetings 2 Dec 22th Water Committee Staff  Language definition of 
SB 5 in terms of Section 
80110, two hundred 
million dollars 

47



  

 
BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS: CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT— 

Monthly Report Page 3 
 

Page 3 

($200,000,000) shall be 
available to the Natural 
Resources Agency for 
implementation of 
voluntary agreements 
that provide multi 
benefit water quality, 
water supply, and 
watershed protection 
and restoration for the 
watersheds 

Regulatory Work 3 Dec 26th Follow-up Cal Fire Grant 
Opportunities 

FEMA has announced 
Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program grants 
available as a result of 
federal disaster 
declaration related to 
wildfires. 

Administrative  1 Dec 27th Weekly Update with GM Gruber CCSD Ongoing Items 

Administrative  2 Jan 2nd Meeting with Board President. SRF Loan/Grant 

SWS Loan 

Refresh;  

State Parks update; 
Planning Commission 
Water Rights Letter. 

Administrative  1 Jan 3rd Scheduled Weekly Update with 
GM Gruber 

CCSD Ongoing Items 

Regulatory Work 8 January 4th STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD 

BOARD MEETING 

Staff workshops to 
discuss specific details 
of the proposed 
Recycled Water Policy 
amendment 

 

Administrative  1 Jan 8th Weekly Update with GM Gruber Special discussion on 
State Parks access 
issue. 

Regulatory Work 7 January 9th STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD 

BOARD MEETING 

Draft Amended 
Proposition 1 
Groundwater Grant 
Program (GWGP) 
Funding Guidelines 

     

     

     

     

48



  

 
BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS: CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT— 

Monthly Report Page 4 
 

Page 4 

SUMMARY HOURS UTLIZED  

CATAGORY HOURS  

Administrative 10  

Regulatory Work 47  

Legislative 8  

Travel 12  

TOTAL MONTHLY HOURS EXPENDED 77   

WORK NARRATIVE 

Administrative: 

GM Gruber and I continue to work on outstanding issues in the State-Local nexus including: Working with Scott 
McFarland at State Water Rights. Note The issuance of these licenses will not be a hindrance to the issuance of any 
Coastal Development Permit.  The water rights are still in effect and there are no outstanding petitions.  Ongoing 
discussions on regarding Coastal Commission Staff and the County of San Luis Obispo Staff relating to Cambria 
Regular Coastal Development Permit for the Sustainable Water Facility. We also discussed the Districts efforts relating 
to Wet Weather Preparedness, The Closure Plan and the Cease and Desist Order. 

 

New items for discussion include a repackage of debt SRF Loan interest rate relief package with the State. Also, CAL 
Fire grant opportunities including: (a) FEMA has announced Hazard Mitigation Grant Program grants available as a 
result of federal disaster declaration related to wildfires in CA; (2) CAL FIRE has announced filing period for 
Greenhouse Gas Grants that has a specific section/allocation for co-generation facilities. 

 

 

DWR Actions & Impact 

 

AMENDMENT TO THE STATEWIDE GENERAL PERMIT FOR THE DISCHARGE OF STORM WATER ASSOCIATED 
WITH INDUSTRIAL ACTIVITIES  

 

There are no policy issues with the proposed amendment to incorporate mandatory TMDL requirements and U.S. 
EPA analytical methods. The following policy issue pertains to the proposed compliance options: Should the State 
Water Board allow the compliance option through storm water capture, use and infiltration statewide, or solely in 
regions and watersheds where the Regional Water Board does not have groundwater concerns? 

 

State Water Board staff is proposing to amend the existing General Permit to: (1) incorporate permit requirements 
to implement existing TMDLs, (2) update monitoring requirements per the new federal Sufficiently Sensitive 
Methods Rule, and (3) provide permit compliance options for compliance with certain of this General Permit’s 
technology-based effluent limitations, water quality based effluent limitations, discharge prohibitions, and TMDL 
requirements. The proposed TMDL-related requirements (which include numeric action levels and numeric 
effluent limitations) are applicable to discharges in watersheds that identify industrial storm water discharges as 
a source of the subject surface waterbody impairment. The proposed incorporation of requirements of the new 
U.S. EPA-approved Sufficiently Sensitive Methods Rule requires industrial storm water dischargers to use 
analytical methods that detect and quantify pollutants at, or below, the applicable water quality criteria or permit 
limits. 

 

49



  

 
BALANCE PUBLIC RELATIONS: CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT— 

Monthly Report Page 5 
 

Page 5 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE PROPOSITION 1 GROUNDWATER GRANT PROGRAM GUIDELINES  

The State Water Board has a total of approximately $744 million available for qualifying planning and 
implementation projects, after accounting for bond and program administration costs.  Division of Financial 
Assistance (DFA) staff are completing the evaluation of proposals and the award of funds for the first round of 
funding (Round 1). In anticipation of the second round of funding (Round 2) to occur in 2018, staff have proposed 
amendments to the Guidelines to provide clarification regarding funding eligibility, to make changes to the 
maximum funding amounts, and to clarify general program requirements and expectations.   

 

Groundwater projects in all regions are eligible including San Luis area.  Regional Water Quality Control Boards 
and the Division of Drinking Water district offices are assisting with the technical review and evaluation of project 
proposals and will be providing input during project implementation. 

 

 

Amendments to the Recycled Water Policy  

State Water Board staff expect to release a public draft of an amendment to the Recycled Water Policy by March of 
2018 with the Science Advisory Panel who presented their findings and recommendations at a public meeting on 
December 15, 2017 and will release their draft report for a 30-day public comment period in early January 2018. 
There was a staff workshops to discuss specific details of the proposed amendment on  January 4, 2018 on this 
topic which may or may not affect the Cambria waste plant.  

 

Ongoing Issues:  

 

Improvements to State Revolving Loan Fund 

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) administers California’s Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Program (Program). In the last several years, the Program has received a significant 
number of applications in comparison to previous years. As of September 18, 2017, the Program had 165 
applications in-house, totaling $7.6B in funds requested; over 60 of those applications were complete. On average, 
the Program finances between 30 and 40 applications per year. Discussion centered on numerous improvements 
in the program that would benefit Cambria in the following next rounds and on the refinancing front. 

 

Legislative Outreach Advocacy 

Continue to see guidance on recycled water and grant funds expected from the upcoming bond election (given 
legislative passage) with a focus on upcoming grant and eligibility requirements. At least 3 meetings centered on 
this topic. BPR also began discussion with key legislative staff on potential changes to the SRF statute allowing a 
interest rate buy down.  

 

 

 

 

50



Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

There were 4 Public Record Requests received since December 14, 2017 by the following 
citizens. The listing below is representative of the request and does not necessarily reflect the 
extensive nature of each request.   
 
12/13/2017: Cindy Steidel 1) Email receipts for period November 24, 2017 through December 4, 
2017 for the following Director email addresses: arice@cambriaccsd.com; 
DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com, hfarmer@cambriaccsd.org, harry@hfastrologer.com (if a source 
of district records) I would appreciate access to emails which provide community comments 
(positive or negative) regarding the candidate slate seeking appointment to Mr. Sanders 
vacated seat. 

On December 22, 2017, the CCSD responded to Cindy Steidel’s 12/13/2017 request with the 
following: 

A ten (10) day extension until January 1, 2018 is needed to continue to search our files. You will 
be notified if records have been identified and are available earlier. 

On December 28, 2017, the CCSD responded to Cindy Steidel’s 12/13/2017 request with the 
following: 

Enclosed is all the emails received from the email addresses hfarmer@cambriaccsd.org and 
harry@hfastrologer.com for the period November 24, 2017 through December 4, 2017. A ten 
(10) day extension until January 7, 2018 is needed to continue to search for responsive 
documents for the following email addresses: arice@cambriaccsd.com and 
DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com. We will notify you when we have additional responsive 
documents available. 

On January 5, 2018, the CCSD responded to Cindy Steidel’s 12/13/2017 request with the 
following: 

Enclosed is all the emails received from the email addresses arice@cambriaccsd.com and 
DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com for the period November 24, 2017 through December 4, 2017. 

12/18/2017: Elizabeth Bettenhausen 1)I request a copy of the complete list of Expense 
Distribution Accounts (and/or) the equivalent, if called by a different name) used in the CCSD 
budget, CCSD monthly Expenditures Report, and any other system used by the CCSD to keep 
account of CCSD expenditures. I request a copy of the complete list of Revenue Distribution 
Accounts (and/or the equivalent, if called by a different name) used by the CCSD in any and all 
ways. This request for the complete list refers to the numbers and the purpose of each. 

On December 19, 2017, the CCSD responded to Elizabeth Bettenhausen’s 12/18/2017 request 
with the following: 

Enclosed is the Cambria Community Services District’s chart of accounts. 

 

51

mailto:arice@cambriaccsd.com
mailto:DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com
mailto:hfarmer@cambriaccsd.org
mailto:harry@hfastrologer.com
mailto:hfarmer@cambriaccsd.org
mailto:harry@hfastrologer.com
mailto:arice@cambriaccsd.com
mailto:DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com
mailto:arice@cambriaccsd.com
mailto:DirectorRice.ccsd@gmail.com


12/26/2017: Julie Tacker 1) Please provide the oaths office for yourself, Haley Dodson, and the 
two newest directors. Electronic copies are best. 

On December 28, 2017, the CCSD responded to Julie Tacker’s 12/26/2017 request with the 
following: 

Enclosed is the Oath of Office forms for Director Aaron Wharton, Director David Pierson, 
Monique Madrid, and Haley Dodson. 

1/3/2018: Gregg Berge 1) Copies of all loan documents, security instruments, encumbrances, 
and list of all CCSD facilities that secure the Sustainable Water Facility financial loan(s) of 
record. I do believe that this loan is currently with Torrey Pines Bank. 

On January 11, 2018, the CCSD responded to Gregg Berge’s 1/3/2018 request with the 
following: 

1) Enclosed is the Installment Sale Agreement between the Cambria Community Services 
District and TPB Investments, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

52



S.R. 4.B.53



S.R. 4.B.54



S.R. 4.B.55



S.R. 4.B.56



S.R. 4.B.57



S.R. 4.B.58



S.R. 4.B.59



S.R. 4.B.60



S.R. 4.B.61



S.R. 4.B.62



S.R. 4.B.63



S.R. 4.B.64



S.R. 4.B.65



S.R. 4.B.66



S.R. 4.B.67



S.R. 4.B.68



S.R. 4.B.69



S.R. 4.B.70



S.R. 4.B.71



S.R. 4.B.72



S.R. 4.B.73



S.R. 4.B.74



S.R. 4.B.75



S.R. 4.B.76



S.R. 4.B.77



S.R. 4.B.78



S.R. 4.B.79



S.R. 4.B.80



S.R. 4.B.81



S.R. 4.B.82



Cambria CSD Fire Department  
January 18, 2018 CCSD Board Meeting 

December 2017 

Prevention and Education 

 2 Residential rough/hydro inspections were completed 

 4 Fire final inspections 

 0 Residential site visits for building questions 

 8 Fire plan reviews 

o 2152 Latham

o 6180 Moonstone

o 525 Ashby

o 421 Ardath

o 348 Harvey

o 498 Huntington

o 250 Cambridge

o 2250 Yorkshire

 4 Engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted

 0 Public education events

 14 Residential smoke/carbon monoxide detectors were installed and or the batteries changed

 8 Contacts with people regarding fire prevention questions

 3 Fire Engine and Station tours

Hydrants Maintenance & Testing 

Date Water Used Hydrants Completed Hours 

June 3,768 32 52 

July 0 0 0 

August 1,650 21 16 

September 0 30 18 

October 0 15 12 

Novemer 0 0 0 

December 0 0 0 

Total 5,418 98 98 

Meetings and Affiliations 

 SLO County Chief’s meeting December 8th, 0900 Pismo 

 CCSD meeting December 11th, 1000 Vet’s Hall 

 Firesafe Focus meeting December 13th, 1500 Station 57 

 CCSD meeting December 14th, 1000 Vet’s Hall 

 CCFPA December 21st, 0900 SLO 

 Operations and News 

 Training hours: 106 hours, Training for the month of November was primarily focused on the following

topics:

o 5792 orientation

o ALS review

o Pump operations

o SLICERS review

 Season of Hope and Toys for Tots

Fire Statistics are attached for your review 

S.R. 4.C.83



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17  Totals

Fire 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 0 1 1 1 1 10

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical 64 48 47 54 49 45 41 35 42 49 49 49 572

(Ocean Rescue) 0 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 6

(Cliffside Rescue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle TC 1 2 4 2 1 2 2 3 3 0 1 1 22

Hazardous Situations 13 27 5 3 7 3 0 2 2 3 3 0 68

Public Service Assist 17 13 17 16 11 15 18 13 21 15 20 23 199

False Alarms 10 16 8 9 12 11 20 16 13 23 11 14 163

Agency Assist 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid 0 0 0 0 3 2 2 0 0 0 0 1 8

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

(Vegetation Fire - In County) 0 0 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 5

(Vegetation Fire - Out of County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Auto Aid 0 0 0 0 2 1 6 1 3 0 0 1 14

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 1 6 0 3 0 0 1 11

(Vehicle Accident) 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3

Fire Investigations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2

Monthly Response Totals 105 108 81 87 91 79 91 70 86 92 85 92 1067

S.R. 4.C. Attachment84



S.R. 5.A.85



S.R. 5.A.86



S.R. 5.A.87



S.R. 5.A.88



S.R. 5.A.89



S.R. 5.A.90



S.R. 5.A.91



S.R. 5.A.92



S.R. 5.A.93



S.R. 5.A.94



S.R. 5.A.95



S.R. 5.A.96



S.R. 5.A.97



S.R. 5.A.98



S.R. 5.A.99



S.R. 5.A.100



S.R. 5.A.101



S.R. 5.A.102



S.R. 5.A.103



S.R. 5.A.104



S.R. 5.A.105



S.R. 5.A.106



S.R. 5.A.107



S.R. 5.A.108



S.R. 5.A.109



S.R. 5.A.110



S.R. 5.A.111



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, December 4, 2017 10:00 AM 
 

1. OPENING 
 
A. Call to Order 

 
President Rice called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Farmer, Director Bahringer, and 
Director Wharton. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid, and Confidential 
Administrative Assistant Haley Dodson. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Public Comment on process. 

 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A NEW DIRECTOR TO FILL THE 

VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF GREGORY SANDERS 
 

President Rice introduced the item and reviewed the process. 
 
She asked for consensus on some clarification on the process. 
  
Candidates will be allowed 4 minutes for an introduction and will be asked follow-up 
questions by the Board if they have any. 

 
Public Comment following introductions:  
Following public comment will reduce the number of applicants. 

These applicants will proceed to the questioning of the Board. 

Each candidate will be asked the same question by the Board Members.  
Board Members will select a question from the list of questions prepare by the President 
and Director Bahringer. Approximately 12 minutes per applicant. Public Comment 
following the question period. 

 
Candidates who did not move forward to the questioning period are not necessarily 
eliminated and can be considered at a later time. Elimination only occurs when the 
successful applicant is appointed. 

 
Vice President Farmer requested to identify the qualifying characteristics in an applicant. 
He's looking for someone who will honestly assess the many challenges that face the 
District and the community. Make difficult decisions on putting financial house in order. 
Fresh ideas, gain the respect of ratepayers, someone who loves Cambria, respect of 
Mother Earth and Cambria. 

 
Director Wharton read his statement on his ideas related to the numerous emails he 
received and what was stated in them. 

112



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Director Bahringer agreed with Director Wharton. 
 

President Rice’s goal today is the exhibit of intellectual and civility, pay attention to the 
budget, and focus on multiple issues related to the entire community. 

 

Public Comment on process or questions: 
Steve Kniffen 
Don Howell 
Dino Araali 
Jeff Hellman 
Ronald Cristando 

 

AGP placed the questions on the screen and each Director selected a question from the 
numbered questions 1-10. 

 

Selections as follows: 
 

 President Rice- Question # 9  

Vice President Farmer- Question # 3  

Director Bahringer-Question # 4  

Director Wharton-Question # 5 

 
President Rice spoke to the applicants. She advised them that they would each select 
their random number, be sequestered, and asked them not to discuss CCSD business 
while sequestered and to please not have any electronic devices on. 

 

Candidate random numbering: 
1. Dewayne Lee 
2. Mark Herrier-could not attend 
3. Allan MacKinnon 
4. Jeff Walters 
5. Karen Dean 
6. David Pierson 
7. Brian Morrow 
8. Steve Kniffen 
9.  Allan Fields-will arrive later 
10. Tom Gray 
11.  Ron Cristando 
12.  Dennis Perry 

 

1. Dewayne Lee introduced himself.  
2. Mr. Herrier-not present 
3. Allan MacKinnon introduced himself.  
4. Jeff Walters introduced himself. 
5. Karen Dean introduced herself.  
6. David Pierson introduced himself.  
7. Brian Morrow introduced himself.  
8. Steve Kniffen introduced himself.  
9. Allan Fields-not present 
10. Tom Gray introduced himself.  
11. Ron Cristando introduced himself.  
12. Dennis Perry introduced himself. 

 
Public Comment for 1 minute: 
Bradley Zane 
Mike Lyons 
Jeff Hellman 
John Bell 
Jean Matulus 
Lucia Capaccioni 
Mary Webb 

113



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Sheri Bell 
Joe Zenk  
Donald Archer 
Claudia Harmon Worthen 
Bev Praver 
Ted Key 
Leslie Richards 
Brian Griffith 
Greg Bates: Read into the record by the President 
Cynthia Steidel 
Bob Detweiler 
Mark Rochefort 
Laurel Stewart 
Donn Howell 
Peter Chaldecott 
Bob Fountain 

 

Break: the Board President called for a thirty minute lunch break. 
 

At 1:49 p.m. the Board President called the meeting back to order. 
 
Board members selected the following applicants for follow up questions: 

 

President Rice: Dewayne Lee, Dennis Perry, and Karen Dean  

Vice President Farmer: Dewayne Lee and Karen Dean  

Director Bahringer: Tom Gray, Mark Herrier, and David Pierson  

Director Wharton: Tom Gray, Ronald Cristando, and Mark Herrier 
 

The President called all applicants back to the Main Hall and advised them of the 

selected applicants, then dismissed them back to the sequester room. 
 

The selected candidates returned to the interview portion of the meeting in the same 
order as originally selected. 
  
Two minutes were allowed for each response. 
 
Vice President Farmer asked all candidates the following question: 
What would the first steps be in the process of evaluating and identifying solutions to our 
fiscal challenges? What do you think fiscal responsibility means for the CCSD Board's 
authority?  
 
Director Bahringer asked all candidates the following question:  
What information - data, reports, studies...do you rely on to make your judgements? 
Describe a situation when you had to learn a large amount of material quickly. How did 
you do it?  
 
Director Wharton asked all candidates the following question: 
Identify something the District does that you perceive needs attention and describe what 
qualities you will bring to the Board to address that if appointed.  
 
President Rice asked all candidates the following question:  
How will you work to bridge the perceived divides and bring more civility into the overall 
discourse? 
 

Vice President Farmer moved to extend the meeting to 4:30 p.m. 
 
Director Bahringer seconded the motion. 

114



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Farmer- Aye 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

President Rice asked the applicants to return to the main hall. 
 
She asked the Board members if they have any follow-up questions. 

 

Board discussion followed. 
 

President Rice opened the floor for nominations. 
 

Director Bahringer moved to nominate Tom Gray to fill the vacant Board seat. 
 

Director Wharton seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Nay 
President Rice-Nay 

 

Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Bahringer, Wharton), 2-Nays (Farmer, Rice), 0-Absent 
 

Vice President Farmer moved to nominate Dewayne Lee to fill the vacant Board seat. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
Director Wharton-Nay 
Director Bahringer-Nay 
 
Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Farmer, Rice), 2-Nays (Bahringer, Wharton), 0-Absent

115



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

 

Director Bahringer moved to continue the meeting to a date certain, December 11, 2017 
at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

B. Swear In Appointee 
 

4. ADJOURN 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting at 3:50 p.m. 

116



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ADJOURNED SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  

Monday, December 11, 2017 12:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Board President called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

The Board President led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 
Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Farmer, Director Bahringer and 
Director Wharton. 
 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, and 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
The Board President reminded everyone that this is an adjourned meeting and public 

comment was previously taken on December 4, 2017, the original meeting date. 

 

3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A NEW DIRECTOR TO FILL 
THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF GREGORY SANDERS 

 
The Board President introduced the item and called attendance of the 7 applicants who 

were previously selected for follow up questioning.  

 

The applicants who were present and previously selected are Dewayne Lee, Mark 

Herrier, Karen Dean, David Pierson, Dennis Perry, and Tom Gray. 

 

The applicant who was absent is Ron Cristando. 

  
The applicants not selected to advance who were present: Brian Morrow.  
Allan Fields sent an email which advised he would be present after he finished work 
around 1:00 p.m. 

 
President Rice asked for a nomination from someone on the short list. 

 
Director Bahringer nominated Tom Gray to fill the vacant seat on the Board of Directors. 
 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Nay 
President Rice-Nay 

 

117



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Bahringer, Wharton), 2-Nays (Farmer, Rice), 0-Absent 
  
Director Bahringer asked if it is true that anyone on the list could be nominated. It was 
agreed that that was true. 
 
Vice-President Farmer nominated Dewayne Lee to fill the vacant seat on the Board of 
Directors. 

 
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 
Mr. Lee requested an opportunity to answer some questions from the Board. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
Director Wharton-Nay 
Director Bahringer-Nay 

 
Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Farmer, Rice), 2-Nays (Bahringer, Wharton), 0-Absent 

 
Director Bahringer stated he had no further nominations. 

 
Director Wharton stated he had no further nominations. 

 
Director Farmer asked why both Directors are no longer in favor of their other selected 
applicants. 

 
Director Wharton suggested the Board call an election. 

 
President Rice moved to nominate Dennis Perry to fill the vacancy on the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Vice President Farmer seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
Director Bahringer-Nay 
Director Wharton-Nay 

 
Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Rice, Farmer), 2-Nays (Bahringer, Wharton), 0-Absent 

 
Director Bahringer moved to call a Special Election to allow the two candidates 
supported by the Directors to run for election. 
 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Nay 
President Rice-Nay 

 
Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Bahringer, Wharton), 2-Nays (Farmer, Rice), 0-Absent 

 
President Rice moved to nominate David Pierson to fill the vacancy on the Board of 
Directors. 

 

118



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Vice President Farmer seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Nay 
Director Bahringer-Nay 

 
Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Rice, Farmer), 2-Nays (Bahringer, Wharton), 0-Absent 

 

Vice President Farmer moved to remain at the meeting until 4:30 p.m. today to 
conclude this process. 
 
Motion failed for a lack of a second. 

 

President Rice moved to have the meeting adjourned to a date certain.  
 
Motion failed for a lack of a second. 

 

President Rice called a 10 minute break.  
 
President Rice called the meeting back to order at 2:05 p.m. 

 

Director Wharton moved to appoint Mark Herrier to fill the vacant Board seat. 
  
Director Bahringer seconded the motion with the addition to allow questioning of Mr. 
Herrier. Mr. Herrier stated he did not review the taped special meeting. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Wharton-Aye 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Nay 
President Rice-Nay 

 

Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Wharton, Bahringer) 2-Nays (Farmer, Rice), 0-Absent 
 

Vice President Farmer moved to nominate Karen Dean to fill the vacant Board member 
seat. 
  
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
Director Wharton-Nay 
Director Bahringer-Nay 

 

Motion Failed: 2-Ayes (Farmer, Rice), 2-Nays (Bahringer, Wharton), 0-Absent 
 

Director Bahringer moved to continue to a special meeting with a date certain on 
Tuesday, December 19, 2017 at 12:00 p.m. to address two items.  
  
President Rice seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Bahringer-Aye 

119



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

President Rice-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Nay 

 

Motion Passed: 3-Ayes (Bahringer, Rice, Wharton), 1-Nay (Farmer), 0-Absent  
 

B. Swear In Appointee 
 

4. ADJOURN 

 
President Rice adjourned the meeting at 3:01 p.m. 

120



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, December 19, 2017 12:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

President Rice called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Farmer, Director Bahringer, and 
Director Wharton. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, and 
Confidential Administrative Assistant Haley Dodson. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF A POLICY REGARDING 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS DURING BOARD MEETINGS 
 

President Rice introduced the item and discussed the item. District Counsel provided the 
Board with a brief summary. 

 
The Board requested that staff bring the item back for discussion of an expanded policy or to 
create a policy with some alternatives, both restrictive and to delineate some of the different 
options.  

 

Public Comment: 
Mike Lyons 
Karen Dean 
Don Howell 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
 
B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A NEW DIRECTOR TO FILL THE 

VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF GREGORY SANDERS 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the continuation item. There is no staff report. 

 

Public Comment: 
Bev Praver 
Ted Key 
Dewayne Lee 
Karen Dean 
Laura Swartz 
Brian Griffin 
Don Howell 
Christine Heinrich 
Crosby Swartz 

121



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Mike Lyons 

 

Director Wharton moved to nominate David Pierson to the Board of Directors. 
 

Vice President Farmer seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 

 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

Confidential Administrative Assistant Haley Dodson administered the Oath of Office to 
David Pierson. Director Pierson took his seat with the Board of Directors. 

 
C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 47-2017 

CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AND REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF SAID ELECTION WITH THE 
JUNE 5, 2018 STATEWIDE DIRECT PRIMARY ELECTION 

 

This item was not discussed due to the unanimous vote on Director Pierson’s 
nomination to the Board of Directors. 

 

D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF FUNDING ISSUES AND PRIORITIES, 
INCLUDING OPTIONS FOR SPECIAL TAX ELECTIONS 

 

General Manager Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, who 
gave a summary of the item and provided an explanation of the special tax ballot 
measure to continue to fund the SAFER Grant Firefighter. Board direction was 
requested.   
 
Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Laura Swartz 

 
The Board directed staff to bring back additional information as follows: 
 
Chief Hollingsworth: additional information on the fourth Firefighter. President Rice 
requested scenarios regarding: (i) if we can’t get it on the June ballot, (ii) if it gets on the 
June ballot and fails, what happens and how do we deal with that, and (iii) if it goes to 
November, what does it look like on our budget starting next year? 

 
District Counsel: send information to the Board regarding documents that need to be 
submitted to the County for the June and November ballots. 
 
General Manager Jerry Gruber stated the June ballot money is available in this year’s 
budget to fund SAFER Grant Firefighters. In Fiscal Year 2018/19 it goes to the 
November ballot, then from July 1, 2018 to November, 2018, the General Fund revenues 
would need to pay for the SAFER Grant Firefighters. He stated he can have staff provide 
the Board with additional information specifically relating to the fourth Firefighter. He will 
work with the Finance Manager on putting together a funding analysis for the 17/18 fiscal 
year cost of a Firefighter. 
 

122



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

The Board of Directors will hold a Regular meeting on January 18, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. at 
1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428. 

 

4. ADJOURN 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting at 2:07 p.m. 

123



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, December 14, 2017 12:30 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Board President called the meeting to order at 12:34 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

The Board President led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
  
Directors present: President Rice, Vice President Farmer, Director Bahringer, and 
Director Wharton. 
  
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid, and Finance Manager 
Rudy Hernandez. 

 

D. Election of Officers 
 

Director Bahringer moved to postpone electing officers until next month when a fifth 
Board member is seated.  

 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 

Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Nay 

 

Motion Passed: 3-Ayes (Bahringer, Wharton, Farmer), 1-Nay (Rice), 0-Absent 
 
E. Report from Closed Session 

 
District Counsel advised the Board discussed the performance of the General Manager 
and there was nothing further to report. 

 

F. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions 
 

The Board President asked for any additions or deletions from the agenda. 
 
There were no additions or deletions. 

 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion 

additional comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.) 

124



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Public Comment: 
Leslie Richards 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Donn Howell 

 

3. SPECIAL REPORTS (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item) 
 

A. FHFRP Member Jo Ellen Butler to provide an update on recent FHFRP activities  

No representative was present. 

 
B. PROS Commissioner Teri Lord to provide an update on recent PROS activities  

No representative was present. 

 
4. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item) 

 
A. Sheriff's Department Report 

 

Commander Voge provided a brief report on various matters related to the Sheriff's 
Department. 

 

B. Cambria Community Services District Fire Department Report 
 

CCSD Fire Chief William Hollingsworth provided a brief report on various matters related 
to the Fire Department. 

 

5. Manager's Report 
 

A. Manager's Report 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber provided a brief summary of the General Manager’s 
report and a PowerPoint presentation with information on various projects being 
conducted within the District. 

 

Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Christine Heinrich 
Donn Howell 
Mike Lyons 
 

B. Ad Hoc Committees Reporting: 
 

Liaison Reports:  
NCAC PROS FFRP  
Forest Committee 

 

Director Bahringer attended the NCAC dinner, which Bruce Gibson also attended. He 
advised he had nothing to report on the PROS Commission. 

 

President Rice had nothing to report. 

125



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Vice President Farmer reported on attending a Forest Committee meeting. He also 
thanked the Cambria Counsel for the money they have provided to various 
organizations, but more specifically to the Forest Committee. 

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 
A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE NOVEMBER 2017 EXPENDITURE REPORT 

 
B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE NOVEMBER 7, 2017 AND NOVEMBER 22, 

2017 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND NOVEMBER 16. 2017 REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
C. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 45-2017 UPDATING THE 

ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
D. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE MARCH 1, 2017 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES WITH TERRAIN GROUP, INC. 

 

The Board President asked if anyone wanted to pull an item from the consent agenda. 
 

Director Wharton reported on item 6.C. the bank name should be changed to Pacific 
Premier Bank. 

 
Director Bahringer moved to approve the consent agenda with changing the bank name 
to Pacific Premier Bank on item 6.C. 

 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Bahringer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent  

7. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 
 

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF 2018 CCSD REGULAR 
BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and asked for any questions. 
 

President Rice would like the Directors to consider two meetings per month and one 
meeting in middle of the day and one meeting in the evening. 

 

Director Bahringer moved to schedule the January meeting for January 18, 2018 at 2:00 
p.m. 

 

President Rice seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 

Director Bahringer-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 

126



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

Vice-President Farmer-Aye 
 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent  

 

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 QUARTERLY 
BUDGET REVIEW 

 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over the Finance 

Manager Rudy Hernandez, who provided a PowerPoint presentation, along with a 

review of the first quarter financial report. He then answered questions from the Board 

Members. 
 

Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 

 

The Board President called for a 7 minute break. 

 

C. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT BUILDOUT REDUCTION PROGRAM REPORT PREPARED BY THE 
BUILDOUT REDUCTION PROGRAM CITIZENS' COMMITTEE 

 

The Board President thanked the Committee for providing the report before the end of 

the year. District Counsel introduced the item and turned it over to Buildout Reduction 

Program Citizens’ Committee (BRPCC) Member, Mark Rochefort. Mr. Rochefort 

provided a presentation developed by the Buildout Reduction Program Citizens’ 

Committee. 
 

Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Leslie Richards 
Mike Lyons 
Jeff Hellman 

 
President Rice asked Directors to read report and note items they believe need to be 
addressed and possibly use Senator Dean Florez, Ret. for development of support from 
Sacramento legislators. 

 
Director Bahringer moved to extend the meeting to 5:30 p.m. unless prevented by 
Director Wharton's unavailability. 
 
Vice President Farmer seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Bahringer-Aye 
Vice President Farmer-Aye 
Director Wharton-Aye 
President Rice-Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 4-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 
D. DISCUSSION REGARDING MAINTAINING CURRENT STAFFING LEVELS AT 

THE CAMBRIA CSD FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to Fire Chief 
William Hollingsworth, who provided a summary of his report and a PowerPoint 
presentation. 

127



  S.R. 5.B. 

 

 

Board discussion followed. 

 
The Board gave direction to bring back details on funding this as a special tax for a ballot 
measure. 

 

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF FUNDING ISSUES AND PRIORITIES, 
INCLUDING OPTIONS FOR SPECIAL TAX ELECTIONS 

 
The Board agreed to move item 7.E. to Tuesday, December 19, 2017 to review how to 
decide whether and how to fund a fourth Firefighter. 

 

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 
 

9. ADJOURN 
 

President Rice adjourned the meeting at 5:33 p.m. 
 

128



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018  Subject: CONSIDER ADOPTION OF   
        RESOLUTION 02-2018 APPROVING  
        WORKERS’ COMPENSATION   
        COVERAGE FOR BOARD OF   
        DIRECTORS AND SPECIFIED   
        DISTRICT VOLUNTEERS 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 02-2018 to continue providing 
Workers’ Compensation coverage to the Board of Directors (Governing Body) and specified 
District volunteers.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fiscal impact should not change because this item is being recommended as a result of 
SDRMA’s excess carriers requirement to adopt a new Resolution in order to continue (or start) 
coverage.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
The CCSD belongs to a pooled insurance association with other special districts—Special 
District Risk Management Association (SDRMA), which also provides the District’s Workers’ 
Compensation insurance.   
 
At the September 23, 2010 regular Board meeting, the CCSD adopted Resolution 52-2010 in 
order to declare the North Coast Ocean Rescue (NCOR) as volunteers and deem them 
employees for purposes of providing Workers’ Compensation coverage.  Additionally, at the 
May 28, 2015 regular Board meeting, the Board adopted Resolution 15-2015 in order to 
declare the Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) as volunteers and deem them 
employees for purposes of providing Workers’ Compensation coverage. 
 
On November 30, 2017, SDRMA sent correspondence to the CCSD advising a New 
Resolution would need to be adopted in order to continue (or start) providing Workers’ 
Compensation coverage to the Governing Body members and/or specified volunteers. SDRMA 
provided a template Resolution for this item, which has been prepared and is attached for the 
Board’s consideration.    
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve the attached Resolution allowing 
continuation of Workers’ Compensation Coverage for our Governing Body members and our 
specified volunteers.  
 
Attachment: Resolution 02-2018 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:   ___RICE___ FARMER ___ BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON___PIERSON 

129



RESOLUTION 02-2018 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

DECLARING THAT GOVERNING BODY MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS SHALL 
BE DEEMED TO BE EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

PROVIDING WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE FOR SAID CERTAIN INDIVIDUALS WHILE 
PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES 

 

 
WHEREAS, the CCSD utilizes the services of Governing Body Members and Volunteers;  

 
WHEREAS, Section 3363.5 of the California Labor Code provides that a person who performs 

voluntary service for a public agency as designated and authorized by the Governing Body of the agency 
or its designee, shall, upon adoption of a resolution by the Governing Body of the agency so declaring, be 
deemed to be an employee of the agency for the purpose of Division 4 of said Labor Code while 
performing such services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body wishes to extend Workers’ Compensation coverage as provided 
by State law to the following designated categories of persons as indicated by a checkmark in the box to 
the left of the descriptions: 
 

X  All Members of the Governing Body of the Cambria Community Services District as presently or 
hereafter constituted and/or 

X  All persons performing voluntary services without pay other than meals, transportation, lodging or 
reimbursement for incidental expenses 

      Individuals on Work-study programs 
 X  Interns 
      Other Volunteers 

____________________ 

[designate] 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that such persons coming within the categories 

specified above, including the duly elected or appointed replacements of any Governing Body Member 
and other designated individuals be deemed to be employees of the Cambria Community Services 
District for the purpose of Workers’ Compensation coverage as provided in Division 4 of the Labor Code 
while performing such service. However, said Governing Body Members and other designated individuals 
will not be considered an employee of the Cambria Community Services District for any purpose other 
than for such Workers’ Compensation coverage, nor grant nor enlarge upon any other right, duty, or 
responsibility of such Governing Body Members or other designated individuals, nor allow such persons 
to claim any other benefits or rights given to paid employees of the Cambria Community Services District. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of January, 2018 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
      _______________________________ 
      _______________________________ 

President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________    
Monique Madrid     Timothy J. Carmel  
District Clerk     District Counsel 

130



 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 5.D.  
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018 Subject:   CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT  

KERMIT JOHANSSEN, CURRENTLY  
AN ALTERNATE PROS 
COMMISSIONER TO THE PROS 
COMMISSION AND TO APPOINT 
STANLEY COOPER, CURRENTLY A 
PROS COMMISSION, AS AN 
ALTERNATE TO THE PROS 
COMMISSION, WITH EACH 
COMPLETING THE REMAINDER OF 
THE OTHER’S UNEXPIRED TERM 

               
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider the Parks, Recreation and Open Space 
(PROS) Commission’s recommendation to appoint Kermit Johanssen, currently an Alternate 
PROS Commissioner, to the PROS Commission, and to Appoint Stanley Cooper, currently a 
PROS Commissioner, as an Alternate to the PROS Commission, with each completing the 
remainder of the other’s unexpired term. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Kermit Johanssen, currently an Alternate PROS Commissioner, would like the Board’s 
consideration to be appointed to the PROS Commission to fulfill Stanley Cooper’s unexpired 
term, which expires on 10/23/2018. Stanley Copper, currently a PROS Commissioner, would 
like the Board’s consideration to be appointed as an Alternate to the PROS Commission, 
completing the remainder of Kermit Johanssen’s unexpired term, which expires on 10/23/2018. 
 
PROS TERM SCHEDULE 12/17/2015: 
 

Commissioner Date Appointed Term Expiration 

Steve Kniffen - Chair 12/17/15 12/31/19 

Stanley Cooper 2/18/2016 10/23/18 

Adolph Atencio 12/17/15 12/31/19 

Joyce Renshaw 10/23/2014 10/23/18 

Tim Roche 10/23/2014 10/23/18 

Teri Lord-Alternate 2/18/2016 10/23/18 

Kermit Johanssen-Alternate 2/18/2016 10/23/18 

131



 

 

 
 
 

Ex Officio Members Date Appointed 

Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve 2/1/10 

Coast Unified School District 2/1/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
   
UNANIMOUS ___RICE ___FARMER ___BAHRINGER ___WHARTON___PIERSON 
 

132



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO. 5.E. 
 
FROM: Robert Gresens, District Engineer 
   
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2018 Subject:  CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF  
       RESOLUTION 04-2018 DECLARING 
       WORK COMPLETED IN    
       CONFORMANCE WITH THE PLANS  
       AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE  
       SURFACE WATER IMPOUNDMENT  
       BASIN DRAINAGE SWALE PROJECT 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the Board consider adoption of Resolution 04-2018 declaring work 
completed in conformance with the plans and specifications for the Surface Water 
Impoundment Basin Drainage Swale Project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total cost for G.F. Garcia and Sons, Inc. to complete the drainage swale work was 
$44,865. There is no additional fiscal impact from adopting Resolution 04-2018.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Cambria Community Services District entered into a Short Form Public Works 
Contract with G.F. Garcia and Sons, Inc. on November 16, 2017 for construction of the 
Surface Water Impoundment Basin Drainage Swale project. Work was completed 
between November 20, 2017 and December 1, 2017.  No change orders were required 
or issued during completion of the work, and the swale is operational.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Resolution 04-2018 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS: ____ RICE____BAHRINGER____FARMER____WHARTON____PIERSON 

133



RESOLUTION NO. 04-2018 
January 18, 2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
DECLARING WORK COMPLETED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE SURFACE WATER IMPOUNDMENT BASIN 
DRAINAGE SWALE PROJECT 

  
WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Services District (“CCSD”) entered into a 
contract with G.F. Garcia & Sons on November 16, 2017, for construction of the 
Surface Water Impoundment Basin Drainage Swale project and said construction 
was completed on December 1, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Services District conducted their final 
inspection on December 1, 2017 and determined the project was satisfactorily 
completed per design/construction specifications and in the time period and budget 
allotted. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District, as follows: 
  
 That said contract work was completed on December 1, 2017; 
 

That the total cost of the project was $44,865.00. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of January, 2018. 
 
 
        
            
      ____________________________  
       Board President 
 
  
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Monique Madrid    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

134



 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.A.  
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018 Subject:   DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF PROPOSED 2018 PROS GOALS &  
        OBJECTIVES 
               
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider the proposed 2018 PROS Commission 
Goals and Objectives.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION 
 
2018 Proposed Board Goals: 
 

1. Continue working with the County on the Burton Drive Pedestrian Path. Consider an 
alternative for the portion of Burton Drive from the intersection of Eaton Road to the 
bridge that might be more practical. 

2. Work with the County of San Luis Obispo on the establishment of additional Bike Paths 
throughout the community of Cambria. 

3. Identify the properties/lots within the Build out Reduction Committees report that would 
be useful for PROS Mission Statement, goals and objectives. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
   
UNANIMOUS ___RICE ___FARMER ___BAHRINGER ___WHARTON___PIERSON 

135



1/16/2018: Staff Report 6.B. PowerPoint Attachment136



1/16/2018: Staff Report 6.B. PowerPoint Attachment137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.C.  
 
FROM: Rudy Hernandez, Finance Manager 
                      Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  

Meeting Date: January 18, 2018    Subject:  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
 OF IMPLEMENTATION OF WATER 
 AND SEWER RATES PURSUANT TO 
 RESOLUTION 01-2016  

               
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the implementation of the 4% water and 
sewer rate increases previously adopted by Resolution 01-2016, to go into effect on March 1, 
2018, and direct staff to mail a courtesy notice to CCSD customers advising of the upcoming 
rate increases. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The proposed water and sewer rate increases are necessary to provide adequate revenue to 
fund the annual costs of water and sewer operations, and to reduce any annual budget deficits.  
The 4% increase in water rates is projected to bring in an additional $126,000 in annual water 
revenue, while the 4% increase in wastewater rates will amount to an additional $79,475 
annually. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
In late 2015 the Board commissioned a Water & Sewer Rate Study (Rate Study) which then 
became the basis for the noticed public hearing conducted in accordance with the requirements 
of Proposition 218. On February 12, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2016-01 
(copy attached), which approved a graduated rate schedule with four (4) annual 4% inflationary 
increases. The first increase took effect on March 1, 2017, and the second increase was 
scheduled to take effect January 1, 2018; however, staff postponed implementing the increases 
to allow the Board to consider this item.   
 
Although the rate increases have already been approved by the Board and go into effect 
automatically, the Board has the discretion to waive, postpone or reduce them, if they determine 
it is appropriate to do so. Staff recommends that the Board approve implementing the rate 
increases as previously approved, effective March 1, 2018.  
 
The Rate Study was conducted by Bartle Wells & Associates, a qualified third-party consultant 
(Rate Consultant) with vast experience in rate-setting matters for all types of government 
agencies. The Rate Consultant’s primary duty was to “forensically” analyze the District’s costs 
(both current and future) of providing safe and reliable water and wastewater services, and then, 
based upon such cost analysis, provide recommendations as to the proper level of rates that 
produce enough income to allow the District to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater 
services. Nothing has come to staff’s attention that changes the premised findings and 
recommendations of the Rate Consultant. 
 
Key factors driving the need for rate increases include: 

156



 

2 
 

 

 Help restore balance budgets. In recent years, both water and wastewater utilities 
experienced annual budget deficits. The rate increases are needed to assist in bringing 
revenues back in line with the costs of providing services, restoring financial stability. 

 Help fund critical improvements to aging infrastructure. The rate increases help fund 
CCSD’s highest-priority water system capital needs and provide a minimal prudent level 
of funding for repairs, replacements, and rehabilitation of aging infrastructure.  (The 
increased wastewater rates do not account for potential future regulatory-required 
upgrades to CCSD; s wastewater treatment plant. CCSD plans to pursue grants and low-
rate subsidized financing to help fund these infrastructure needs.) 

 Ongoing cost inflation. Small annual rate increases keep revenues in line with the cost 
of inflation, which tends to be higher for utilities such as water and wastewater. Another 
annual increase includes labor costs. Some of these costs include increases in retirement 
plans, base salaries, health and dental premiums, and worker’s compensation premiums.  
Other miscellaneous increases include the cost of electricity, gasoline and other 
insurance premiums such as liability and vehicles.   

 
Although not legally required, by sending a courtesy notice of the upcoming rate increases in the 
form attached to this agenda report, ratepayers may be better able to prepare for the increases 
that will be billed for 2018, should the Board follow staff’s recommendation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment: Resolution 01-2016 
Notice of Increases to Water and Wastewater Rates 

 
 

 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
   
UNANIMOUS ___RICE ___FARMER ___BAHRINGER ___WHARTON___PIERSON 

157



RESOLUTION 01-2016

February 12, 2016

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

ADOPTING INCREASED WATER AND SEWER RATES,
EFFECTIVE MARCH 1, 2016

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 61115 provides that the Cambria Community
Services District, hereinafter referred to as the "CCSD," may establish, revise and collect
rates and other charges for the services and facilities furnished by it; and

WHEREAS, existing CCSD water and sewer rates are not adequate to fund the normal
operating costs of the water and sewer utility systems. The approved budget for Fiscal
Year 2015-16 includes an operating deficit in the Water Fund of $254,654 (not including
the Sustainable Water Facility operations) and an operating deficit in the Sewer Fund of
$207,317. In addition, there is an immediate need for approximately $1,000,000 in the
Water Fund for critical capital improvements, specifically the replacement of the Fiscalini
Water Tank, upgrading the pump station at the Rodeo Grounds and work on the Stuart
Street Tank project; and

WHEREAS, the rate increases are necessary because the CCSD's water and sewer
utilities rely primarily on revenues from service charges to fund the costs of providing
service, and therefore water and sewer rates must be set at levels adequate to fund the
costs of operating and maintaining the District's water and sewer systems to support safe
and reliable service; and

WHEREAS, key factors driving the need for rate increases include: a need to restore
balanced budgets to bring revenues in line with the cost of providing service and restore
financial stability, to help fund critical improvements to aging infrastructure, to help fund
the District's highest-priority water system capital needs, to provide a minimal
prudent level of funding for repairs, replacements, and rehabilitation of aging
infrastructure, and to provide for small annual rate increases to keep revenues in line with
future cost inflation; and

WHEREAS, the water and sewer rates to be imposed by this Resolution cover no more
than the cost that CCSD incurs to provide water and sewer services as detailed in the
Water and Sewer Rate Study prepared by Bartle Wells & Associates and reviewed by the
Board on November 12, 2015; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 218, official notice of the
proposed increase in water and sewer rates was mailed to each record owner and
customer of record, including property owners and tenant customers, on November 13,
2015 to advise of the public hearing (the "Notice"), which was originally scheduled for
December 29, 2015; and

WHEREAS, it subsequently came to staffs attention that the Notice contained errors in
the zip codes for the Veterans Memorial Building and for the address to submit written

158



Resolution 01-2016

Page 2 of 3

protests, and therefore a Notice of Continued Proposition 218 Public was sent to the
parcel owners and tenant customers to advise of the errors, and that the December 29,
2015 public hearing would be opened, comments considered, protests received, and that
the public hearing would be continued to February 12, 2016; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted by the Board of Directors on February 12,
2016, at which time all interested persons were afforded an opportunity to be heard on
matters pertaining to the proposed increases to the water and sewer rates and to submit
written protests; and

WHEREAS, the total number of parcels with the right to protest water rates is 3,937 and
the total number of parcels with the right to protest sewer rates is 3,828. To reach a
majority protest, 50% + 1 of these parcels, or 1,969 parcels for water rates and 1,915
parcels for sewer rates, are required to protest; and

WHEREAS, after tabulating the protests in accordance with the CCSD's adopted
Guidelines for the Submission and Tabulation of Protests, it was determined that a
majority protest does not exist; and

WHEREAS, the approval of this Resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public
Resources Code Section 21080(b)(8).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria
Community Services District that the water and sewer rates, as provided in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, are hereby adopted and shall
become effective March 1, 2016.

ABSENT

EDAND ADOPTED THIS 12^ day of February, 2016. , k

:

:: ^
4

6ail Robinett^Pf
Board of Directors

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ATTEST: v

Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel

Monique Madud, District Clerk

159



EXHIBITATO RESOLUTION 01-2016

WATER RATES

Water Rates Effective On or After

March 1

2016

January 1

2017

January!

2018

Jariiiary 1

2019

Januaiy 1

2020

FIXED BI-MONTHLY CHARGES

Residential (fixed charge per account) $25.50 $26.52 $27.53 $28.68 $29.83

Commercial (fixed charge per meter size)

Meter Size

5/8" or 3/4" $25.50

1" 63.75

1-1/2" 127.50

2" & Larger 255.00

$26.52

66.30

132.60

265.20

$27.58

68.95

137.90

275.80

$28.68

71.70

143.40

286.80

$29.83

74.58

149.15

298.30

WATER QUANTITY CHARGES

Billed based on metered water use {$/ccf)

Residential Charges

Tier Bi-Monthlv Use

Tierl l-4ccf $6.50

Tier! 5-16 ccf 8.50

Tier 3 >16 ccf 9.50

$6.76

8.84

9.87

$7.03

9.19

10.25

$7.31

9.56

10.65

$7.60

9.94

11.07

Commercial Charges

Rate for All Water Use $8.50 $8.84 $9.19 $9.56 $9.94

1 ccf = 100 cubic feet, or approximately 748 gallons

SEWER RATES

Sewer Rates Effective On or After

March 1 January 1 January 1
2016 2017 2018

January 1

2019

January 1

2020

FIXED BI-MONTHLY CHARGES

Applies to All Accounts $56.00 $58.24 $60.57 $62.99 $65.51

SEWER QUANTITY CHARGES

Billed per unit of metered water use ($/ccf).

Residential Rates $3.24 $3.37 $3.50 $3.64 $3.79

Commercial Rates

Wastewater Class

Class 1 $2.84

Class! 3.24

Class 3 4.98

$2.95

3.37

5.18

$3.07

3.50

5.39

$3.19

3.64

5.61

$3.32

3.79

5.83

Class 1 includes lower strength accounts including professional offices, retail stores, laundromats, & schools.

Class! includes all other commercial accounts (with standard/domestic strength wastewater) that are not

classified Class 1 or Class 3.

Class 3 Includes accounts with moderate to high wastewater strength including restaurants, hotels with

restaurants, bakeries, mortuaries, markets with meat/seafood/food prep/garbage grinder, and mixed use
accounts with an estimated 30% or more sewer discharge from higher strength wastewater flow.

1 ccf = 100 cubic feet, or approximately 748 gallons

160



161



162



163



164



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.D. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018  Subject:         DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF ANNUAL REVIEW OF BOARD OF  
        DIRECTORS BYLAWS 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss and consider the Board Bylaws and 
provide direction regarding any changes they would like to have brought back at the February 
regular meeting for consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There is no fiscal impact associated with the Board’s annual review of its Bylaws. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Section 10.1 of the Board of Directors Bylaws provides that they are to be reviewed annually at 
the first regular meeting in January. Any amendments are to be considered for adoption at the 
first regular meeting in February. Accordingly, attached is a copy of the current Board Bylaws, 
as revised on August 24, 2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and again on September 28, 2017 per 
Resolution 39-2017, for the Board’s review and consideration.  
 
Recently, there has been Board discussion regarding changing the regular meeting day (the 
fourth Thursday of every month), which is established by Bylaw Section 2.1. If the Board 
decides to change the regular meeting day, staff recommends that the Board defer action on 
the regular meeting schedule (Item 6E) until the February meeting, so the appropriate change 
to Bylaw Section 2.1 can be made. However, in that case, the Board should set the time for the 
February 22 regular meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment:  Board of Directors Bylaws 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ FARMER___BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON 
 

165



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

BYLAWS 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL OR STATE LAW 

The Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) Board of Directors will comply 

with all Federal and State laws governing their conduct in the performance of 

their duties as Directors.  These Bylaws are not intended to amend any laws 

governing the behavior of any individual Board Member or the Board as a whole.  

These Bylaws are for the purpose of providing guidance to the Director in the 

performance of his or her duties.  If it is determined any of these Bylaws conflict 

with Federal or State rules or statutes the Federal or State rules or statutes will 

apply 

 

1. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are the President and Vice 

President. 

1.2 The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as presiding 

officer at all Board meetings.  The President shall have the same 

rights as the other members of the Board in voting, introducing 

motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion. 

1.3 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of 

Directors shall serve as presiding officer over all meetings of the 

Board.  If the President and Vice President are both absent, the 

remaining members shall select one among themselves to act as 

presiding officer of the meeting. 

1.4 The President and Vice President of the Board shall be elected 

annually at the first regular meeting in December and the term of 

office shall commence immediately upon election and continue until 

replaced. 

1.5 The President or his or her designate shall be the spokesperson for 

the Board and point person for intergovernmental relations. 

1.6 The President shall make appointments to all committees subject to 

Board approval. 

2. MEETINGS 

166



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

2.1 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be on the fourth 

Thursday of each calendar month in the Veterans Memorial Hall, 

located at 1000 Main Street, Cambria, unless otherwise directed by 

the Board of Directors. The time for holding Regular meetings of the 

Board of Directors shall be established by resolution. 

2.2 Pursuant to the Brown Act: 

(a) Board Members may briefly respond to statements or questions 

from the public; and 

(b) Board Members may, on their initiative or in response to public 

questions, ask questions for clarification, provide references to 

staff or other resources for factual information, or request staff to 

report back at a subsequent meeting; and 

(c) The President of the Board or a Board majority in open session 

may take action to direct staff to place a matter on a future 

agenda. 

2.3   Meeting Length.  The business at regular meetings of the Board of 

Directors, including any scheduled closed sessions, shall be conducted 

for no more than a four-hour period, unless extended by a four-fifths 

(4/5th) vote of the Board. In the event there are remaining items on 

the agenda at the end of the four-hour period, the Board may adjourn 

the meeting to a specific date and time in accordance with the 

provisions of Government Code Section 54955. The intent and purpose 

of this policy is to encourage a reasonable time period in which the 

Board of Director’s business is discussed and to protect against fatigue 

in discussing and deciding important District issues. 

 

3. AGENDAS 

3.1 The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President and 

Vice President, shall prepare an agenda for each regular and special 

meeting of the Board of Directors. An item placed on an agenda in 

this manner shall only be removed by the General Manager, in 

cooperation with the President and Vice President. Any Director’s 

request to place an item on the agenda must be approved by the 

Board President or a majority of the Board Members acting in open 

session. 

167



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

3.2 A block of time shall be set aside to receive general public comment.  

Comments on items on the agenda should be held until the 

appropriate item is called.  Public comment shall be directed to the 

President of the Board and limited to three minutes unless extended 

or shortened at the President’s discretion. 

3.3 Those items on the CCSD agenda, which are considered to be of a 

routine and non-controversial nature, are placed on the Consent 

Agenda.  These items shall be approved, adopted, and accepted by 

one motion of the Board of Directors. 

(a) Board members may request any item listed under Consent 

Agenda be removed from the Consent Agenda, and the Board will 

take action separately on that item. 

(b) A Board member may ask a minor question, for clarification, on 

any item on the Consent Agenda.   The item may be briefly 

discussed for clarification and the questions will be addressed 

along with the rest of the Consent Agenda. 

(c) When a Board member wishes to pull an item simply to register a 

dissenting vote, the Board member shall inform the presiding 

officer they wish to register a dissenting vote without discussion.  

These items will be handled along with the rest of the Consent 

Agenda, and the District Clerk will register a “no” vote in the 

minutes.  

4. PREPARATION OF MINUTES 

4.1 The minutes of the Board shall be kept by the District Clerk. 

4.2 The District Clerk shall be required to make a record only of such 

business as was actually passed upon by a vote of the Board and, 

except as provided in Section 4.3 and 4.6 below, shall not be required 

to record any remarks of Board members or any other person. 

4.3 Any Director may request for inclusion into the minutes brief 

comments pertinent to an agenda item, only at the meeting in which 

the item is discussed. 

4.4 Written materials delivered to the Board at the meeting that were 

not contained in the Board Agenda Packet for review by the Board 

prior to the meeting shall not be included in the meeting minutes. 

168



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

4.5 The District Clerk shall attempt to record the names and general 

place of residence of persons addressing the Board, the title of the 

subject matter to which their remarks related, and whether they 

spoke in support or opposition to such matter. 

4.6 Whenever the Board acts in a quasi-judicial proceeding such as in 

assessment matters, the District Clerk shall compile a summary of the 

testimony of the witnesses. 

5. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

5.1 Information that is exchanged before meetings shall be distributed 

through the District Clerk, and all Directors will receive all 

information being distributed. 

5.2 Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy to each 

other, to staff and to members of the audience present at Board 

meetings. 

5.3 Individual Directors have the right to disagree with ideas or opinions, 

while being respectful.  Once the Board of Directors takes action, 

Directors should not create barriers to the implementation of said 

action. 

5.4 At the President’s discretion District Counsel shall act as 

parliamentarian. 

6. AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS 

6.1 The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the CCSD.  Apart 

from their normal function as a part of this unit, Directors have no 

individual authority.  As individuals, Directors may not commit the 

CCSD to any policy, act or expenditure. 

6.2 Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the community, 

but are rather a part of the body, which represents and acts for the 

community as a whole. 

6.3 The primary responsibilities of the Board of Directors are: 

(a) The formulation and evaluation of policy. 

(b) Monitoring the CCSD’s progress in attaining its goals and 

objectives. 

(c) Appointment of a General Manager to handle all matters 

concerning the operational aspects of the CCSD. 

7. DIRECTOR GUIDELINES 

169



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

7.1 Board Members, by making a request of the General Manager, shall 

have access to information relative to the operation of the CCSD.  If 

the General Manager cannot provide the requested information in a 

timely manner the General Manager shall inform the individual 

Board Member why the information is not or cannot be made 

available. 

7.2 Board Members should recognize the General Manager has been 

given the authority to handle the operations of the district.  When 

presented with questions or complaints from citizens or staff, 

Directors should listen to the concerns expressed and either confer 

with the General Manager regarding the concerns or refer the 

individual to the General Manager for resolution of their concerns.  

Board Members should not bypass the authority of the General 

Manager. 

8. DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

8.1 Directors may receive compensation of one hundred dollars 

($100.00) for each authorized meeting attended or for each day of 

service rendered as a Director.   

8.2 The following are authorized meeting for which a Director may be 

compensated: 

(a) Regular Board meetings. 

(b) Special Board meetings. 

(c) Advisory or Committee meetings. 

(d) Training or educational seminars, conferences or webinars. 

(e) Negotiation sessions. 

(f) Depositions. 

(g) Meetings with District consultants, engineers, or other 

professionals for the purpose of conducting District business or 

potential business. 

(h) Any other activity the Board requests a member attend in 

advance of attendance. 

8.3 Director compensation shall not exceed six days of service in any 

calendar month. 

8.4 In no event shall any Director’s compensation exceed $100.00 per 

day or $600.00 per month. 

170



 
Bylaws effective 9/28/2017 

Revised on 8/24/2017 per Resolution 38-2017 and revised on 9/28/2017 per Resolution 39-
2017 

8.5 Each Board Member is entitled to reimbursement for their travel, 

meals, lodging and other actual and necessary expenses incurred in 

the performance of the duties required or authorized by the Board 

pursuant to Government Code Section 53232.2 

8.6 Board Members shall provide brief reports on meetings attended at 

the expense of the District at the next regular Board meeting, as 

provided by Government Code Section 53232.3. 

9. COMMITTEES 

9.1 All Board committees shall be Members appointed by the Board 

President with concurrence of the full Board. 

9.2 All committees shall meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of 

CCSD except, as may be permitted by the Brown Act. 

9.3 The Board may appoint such AD HOC committees as may be deemed 

necessary or advisable.  The duties of the AD HOC committee shall be 

outlined at the time of appointment, and the committee shall be 

considered dissolved when its final report has been made.  AD HOC 

committees shall meet on an as needed basis. 

9.4 Standing Committees: 

(a) Standing Committees may be created at the Boards discretion.  

Standing Committees may consider CCSD related issues assigned 

to it on a continuing basis. 

(b) All Standing Committees shall be conducted as public meetings in 

accordance with the Brown Act.  Summary notes for each meeting 

of a Standing Committee shall be forwarded to the Board of 

Directors as a public record. 

10. BOARD BYLAW REVIEW POLICY 

10.1 Subject to 3.1 the Board Bylaws shall be reviewed annually at the 

first regular meeting in January and amendments to the Bylaws shall 

be considered for adoption by the Board at the first regular meeting 

in February. 

 

 

 

171



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.E. 
 
FROM: Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018  Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
        OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 01- 
        2018 ESTABLISHING THE 2018 CCSD  
        REGULAR BOARD MEETING   
        SCHEDULE 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 01-2018 establishing the 2018 
CCSD Regular Board Meeting schedule. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
It is proposed that the Board adopt the regular meeting schedule for 2018 in order to confirm 
the regular meeting dates. This schedule, when adopted, will be used by staff, the media, local 
community groups, and interested individuals to prepare for Board meetings. The Board has 
the authority to amend this schedule as the year progresses or the need arises.  If the Board 
decides to consider a month without a meeting, it should be in a month other than July, due to 
the need to hold the Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Contract Award public hearing in the month of 
July. It should be noted that, pursuant to Bylaw Section 2.1, the time for holding regular 
meetings is established by resolution. The attached Resolution includes blanks for the Board 
to fill in the individual times for each meeting.   
 
In conformance with Bylaw Section 2.1, all proposed 2018 meeting dates are on the fourth 
Thursday of each month, except as follows: 

 
 January 18th (3rd Thursday): Avoids conflict with the Art & Wine Festival. 
 April 19th (3rd Thursday): Avoids conflict with the Wildflower Festival. 
 November 15th (3rd Thursday):  Avoids conflict with Thanksgiving holiday.  (The 

standard CCSD holidays have been established for 2018 with Thanksgiving on 
Thursday, November 22nd.) 

 December 13th (2nd Thursday):  Avoids conflict with Christmas holiday. 
 
 
Attachment:   Resolution 01-2018  
  Exhibit A to Resolution 01-2018 2018 Draft Regular Meeting Schedule 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ FARMER___BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON___PIERSON 
 

172



 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2018 
JANUARY 18, 2018 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING THE 2018 CCSD REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community 
Services District does hereby adopt the 2018 Regular Board Meeting Schedule, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. In conformance with Bylaw Section 2.1, all 2018 
meeting dates are on the fourth Thursday of each month, except as follows: 
 

 January 18th (3rd Thursday): Avoids conflict with the Art & Wine Festival. 
 April 19th (3rd Thursday): Avoids conflict with the Wildflower Festival. 
 November 15th (3rd Thursday):  Avoids conflict with Thanksgiving holiday.  

(The standard CCSD holidays have been established for 2018 with 
Thanksgiving on Thursday, November 22nd.) 

 December 13th (2nd Thursday):  Avoids conflict with Christmas holiday. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th day of January, 2018. 
 
  

 
      
      
President 
Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST:    
  
 
      
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
 

 
 
 
       
 
 

173



 Exhibit A to Resolution 01-2018  
 

 

 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

January 18, 2018 at _____ p.m. - 3rd Thursday 
 

February 22, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 

March 22, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
April 19, 2018 at _____ p.m. - 3rd Thursday 

 
May 24, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
June 28, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
July 26, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
August 23, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
September 27, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 

October 25, 2018 at _____ p.m. 

 
November 15, 2018 at _____ p.m. - 3rd Thursday 

 
December 13, 2018 at _____ p.m. - 2nd Thursday 

 

174



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.F. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 18, 2018  Subject:  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        OF ESTABLISHING COMMITTEE AND  
        DIRECTOR LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss establishing committees and Director 
Liaison Assignments and make any necessary appointments for committees and Director 
Liaison Assignments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 
DISCUSSION:  
The Board President will lead the discussion regarding establishing committees, and the 
proposed appointments of Directors to each committee. The following is a review of the proposed 
Ad Hoc Committees and their tasks, as well as liaison assignments, which are to be considered 
by the Board. 

 
Proposed Committees:  
 
Finance Ad Hoc Committee: Director Rice and Director Farmer 
Task: evaluate budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, assess fiscal policies and priorities. 
  
Fire Department Ad Hoc Committee: Director Farmer and VACANT  
Task: Fire Department. 
  
Infrastructure Ad Hoc Committee: Director Bahringer and Director Farmer 
Task: Water Department, Wastewater Department and technology infrastructure (hardware and 
software) in all departments. 
  
Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROs) Ad Hoc Committee:  Director Bahringer and Director 
Wharton 
Task: Parks & Recreation and Facilities Departments (including Veterans Memorial Hall). 
  
Water Supply (formerly Sustainable Water Facility Water Permitting & EIR Ad Hoc Committee): 
Director Rice and Director Farmer 
Task: 
Support staff’s work on water supply permitting for the Sustainable Water Facility regular Coastal 
Development Permit and Environmental Impact Report. 
Review 2015 UWMP and progress on water efficiency program goals. 
Report to Board and suggest needed policy reviews for consistency. 
 
 

175



 
 

 2 

  
 
Information Technology Ad Hoc Committee: Director Rice and Director Bahringer 
Task: The Technology Ad-Hoc Committee is responsible for pending technology infrastructure 
issues (hardware and software) in all departments. 
  
Liaison Appointments: 
North Coast Advisory Council – Director Bahringer 
Coast Union School District – Director Rice 
Cambria Healthcare District – Director Farmer 
Cambria Forest Committee – Director Farmer 
Cambria Tourism Board – Director Bahringer 
Cambria Fire Safe Focus Group – Director Wharton 
Friends of Fiscalini Ranch Preserve – Director  Farmer 
San Simeon CSD – VACANT 
Regulatory and other local, state, or federal agencies – Director Rice 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:   ___ RICE ___ FARMER ___ BAHRINGER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON 

176


	Meeting Agenda



